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Annexure B

e: corp@paynx.com

The Standalone financial details of Companies for the previous 3 years as per the Audited

Statement of Accounts:

Name of the Company: PayNX Technologies Private Limited

(Rs. in Crores except for EPS and Book Value)

As per last As per last 1 year prior to 2 years prior to
Audited Audited the last Audited| the last Audited
Particulars Financials Year | Financial Year| Financial Year Financial Year
(01.04.2021- (01.04.2020- (01.04.2019- (01.04.2018-
31.03.2022) 31.03.2021) 31.03.2020) 31.03.2019)
Equity Paid up Capital 0.01 0.01 0.01 0.01
Reserves and surplus 0.70 0.47 0.31 0.26
Carry forward losses 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Net Worth 0.71 0.48 0.32 0.27
Miscellaneous Expenditure 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Secured Loans 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Unsecured Loans 4.00 6.89 431 0.65
Fixed Assets 0.05 0.08 0.12 0.16
Income from Operations 2.57 1.99 2.61 2.33
Total Income 2.74 2.55 2.76 2.38
Total Expenditure 2.45 2.33 2.69 2.32
Profit before Tax 0.30 0.23 0.07 0.06
Profit after Tax 0.23 0.16 0.05 0.04
Cash profit 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
EPS 233.80 159.73 49.54 40.35
Book value 708.87 475.06 315.34 265.80

For PayNX Technologies Private Limited

\
¥4
Hirenkumar Shah
Director
DIN: 00092739
Date: 24" June 2022
Place: Mumbai




PayNX Technologies Private Limited
PaYNX CIN: U72900MH2010PTC203628
t: +91 22 6142 6040

e: corp@paynx.com

Regd. Offc.: 602 Avior Nirmal Galaxy
LBS Marg Mulund West Mumbai 400080 India

Annexure B

The Consolidated financial details of Companies for the previous 3 years as per the Audited
Statement of Accounts:

Name of the Company: PayNX Technologies Private Limited

(Rs. in Crores except for EPS and Book Value)

As per last As per last 1 year prior to | 2 years prior to
Audited Audited the last Audited | the last Audited
Particulars Financials Year| Financial Year| Financial Year Financial Year
(01.04.2021- (01.04.2020- (01.04.2019- (01.04.2018-
31.03.2022) 31.03.2021) 31.03.2020) 31.03.2019)
| Equity Paid up Capital 0.01 0.01 0.01 o001
Reserves and surplus -16.90 -16.33 0.60 0.39
Carry forward losses 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Net Worth -16.91 -16.32 0.61 0.40
Miscellaneous Expenditure 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Secured Loans 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Unsecured Loans 7.51 10.22 7.57 22.37
| Fixed Assets | o028 | 032 | o013 0.18
| Income from Operations 4576 54.50 34.26 38.03
Total Income 47.89 55.24 34.42 38.10
Total Expenditure 47.87 72.56 34.21 38.01
Profit before Tax 0.02 -17.32 0.21 0.10
Profit after Tax -0.04 -17.38 0.19 0.08
Cash profit 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
EPS 3979 | -17,383.54 187.36 80.96
| Book value ) -16,888.72 | -16,320.04 609.42 400.97

For PaNXfTechnologies Private Limited

v
Hirenkumar Shah
Director
DIN: 00092739
Date: 24" June 2022
Place: Mumbai



QualiSpace Web Services Private Limited
CIN: U93000MH2017PTC294200

YOUR ONLINE ALLY

QualiSpace

Domain | Hosting loud | Servers

Registered Office: 602, Avior - Nirmal Galaxy,
Opp. Jhonson & Jhonson, LBS Marg,

Mulund (West), Mumbai - 400080.

T: 022 - 6142 6060 E: corp@qualispace.com

Annexure B

The Financial details of Companies for the previous 3 years as per the Audited Statement of
accounts:

Name of the Company: QualiSpace Web Services Private Limited

(Rs. in Crores except for EPS and Book Value)

As per last As per last 1 year prior to 2 years prior to
Audited Audited the last Audited | the last Audited
Particulars Financials Year| Financial Year| Financial Year Financial Year
(01.04.2021- (01.04.2020- (01.04.2019- (01.04.2018-
31.03.2022) 31.03.2021) 31.03.2020) 31.03.2019)
Equity Paid up Capital 0.01 0.01 0.01 0.01
Reserves and surplus 0.70 0.31 0.27 0.08
Carry forward losses 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Net Worth B 0.71 0.32 0.28 0.09
Miscellaneous Expenditure 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Secured Loans 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Unsecured Loans 1.83 1.22 0.42 0.06
Fixed Assets 0.36 0.24 0.30 0.26
Income from Operations 5.16 3.13 3.80 3.56
Total Income o 5.18 3.14 3.80 3.58
| Total Expenditure 4.66 3.06 3.55 3.50
Profit before Tax 0.53 0.08 0.25 0.07
Profit after Tax 0.39 0.04 0.18 0.05
Cash profit 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
EPS 392.40 40.51 184.78 53.36
Bookvalue 711.10 318.70 288.19 93.41

For Qualispace Web Services Private Limited

. \
Dimple Shah
Director
DIN: 07788365
Date: 24" June 2022
Place: Mumbai




o i i!

Tel. : 9325078807 / 9029059911
Email : advassociates@gmail com

Independent Auditor’s Report
TO THE MEMBERS OF PAYNX TECHNOLOGIES PRIVATE LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

aia

We have audited the Standalone financial statements of PAYNX TECHN OLOGIES PRIVATE
LIMITED (“the Company™), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2022, the Statement
of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Standalone Statement of Changes in
Equity and the Standalone Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended on that date, and notes to the
standalone financial statements, including a summary of the significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “the standalone financial statements™)

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013
(“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian
Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (“Ind AS™) and other accounting principles
generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2022, the profit and
total comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit of the standalone financial statements in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing specified under section 143(10) of the Act (SAs) Our responsibilities under those Standards
are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of
Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the
independence requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the
provisions of the Act and the Rules made there under, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAI's Code of Ethics. We beliove that
the audit cvidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on Lhe standalone financial statements.




Key audit matters

Key audit matters are thosc matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in
our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context
of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not
provide a separatc opinion on these matters. We have determined the matters described below to be
the key audit matters to be communicated in our report.

Sr. [ Key Audit Matter
No. ]
| Key Audit Matter

Recognition and measurement of revenues of ongoing contracts:

The recognition and measurement of revenues of ongoing contracis and revenue which is
unbilled mvolves certain key judgmenis relating to measurement, documentation and
certification of such measurements, identification of milestones and compliance related
obligations. Refer Note 22(h) to the Financial Statements
Auditor’s Response '
Principal Audit Procedures

Our audit approach was a combination of test of internal controls and substantive

procedures which included the following:

* Evaluated the design of internal controls relating to recording of revenues at each period

end as per contract (¢rms.

* Sclected a sample of contracts and through inspection of evidence of performince of
these controls, tested the operating effectiveness of (the internal controls relating to

identification and recognition of revenues,

| * Reviewed a sample of contracts with unbilled revenues to identify appropriateness of
revenue recognition as compared to the certified documentation by customers.

* Performed analytical procedures and test of details for reasonableness of recognition of

revenues and its corresponding costs. ,_ N

Information Other than the Standalone Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report thereon:

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the Management Discussion and Analysis,
Board’s Report including Annexure to Board’s Report and Sharcholder’s Information, but does not
include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon,

Our opmion on the standalone financial statements does not cover (the other information and we do
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the standalone financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or
otherwise appears (o be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude
that there is a material misstatement of this other information; we arc required to report that fact. We
have nothing to report in this regard.

Management’s Responsibility for the Standalone Financial Statements




preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate
accounting policies; making Judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate intemal financial controls, that were operating
cffectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the dccounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the Standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view and
are free from material misstatement, whether duc to fraud or error. |

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible [br assessing the Company’s ability
(o continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related 1o going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless management cither intends (o liquidate the Company or
to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial statements as
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high| level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these standalone financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

® Identify and asscss the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to thosc risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentionsl omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

¢ Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are
also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal
financial controls system in place und the operating effectiveness of such controls.

* Fvaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

* Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going

concern. If we conclude that a material uncertuinty exists, we are tequired to draw altention in our 500
auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the standalone financial statements or, if s H A
P2 WA




disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

¢ Fvaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial statements,
including the discloswes, and whether the standalone financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Matenality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone financial statcments that, individually
or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of
the standalone financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and
qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our
work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified missiatemenis in the standalone financial
statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, mcluding any significant deficiencies in
mternal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governimee with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and (0 communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the standalone financial statements of the current period and
arc therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report becuuse the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such

communication,
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
1) Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belicf were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company
so far as it appears from our examination of those honks

¢) ‘The standalone financial statements including the standalone statement of Profit & Loss
account (including Other Comprehensive Income), the standalone Statement of Changes in
equity and the standalone Statement of Cash Flow dealt with by this Report are in agreement
with the relevant books of account.

d) In our opimon, (he aforesmd standalone [inancial statements comply with the Ind AS
specified under Section 1330f the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules,
2014.




e)

g

h)

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2022
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March
31, 2022 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the mternal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company and the operating effectivencss of such controls, refer (o our separate Report in
“Annexure A”. Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating
effectiveness of the Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting,.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
the  requirements  of  section 197(16) of @ the Act, as  amended:
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, the remuneration paid by the Company to its dircctors during the year i3 in accordance
with the provisions of section 197 of the Act.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014. as amended in our opinion and
to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us :

i) The Company has disclosed the impacrt of pending litigations on its financial position in
its standalone financial statements.

ii) The Company has made provision, as required under the applicable law or accounting
standards, for material foreseeable losses, if any, on long-term contracts including
derivative contracts.

iii) Therc has been no delay in transferrng amounts, required (o be trunsferred, to the
Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

iv) (a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no
funds have been advanced or loancd or invested to or in any other person or entity,
including foreign entity (“Intermediarics™), with the understanding (hat the intermediary
shall whether directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in
any manner by or on behalf of the company (Ultimate Beueliciaries) or provide any
guarantee, securily or the like on behalf of ultimate beneficiaries.

(b) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belicf,no funds
have been reccived by the company from any person or entities including foreign entities
(“Funding Partics™) with the understanding that such company shall whether, directly or
indircetly, lend or invest in ather persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever
by or on behall of the funding party (“Ultimate beneficiaries™) or provide guarantee,
security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate beneficiaries.

(c) Based on such audit procedures as considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the

represcatations under subclanse (vi) (a) and (vi) (b) contamn any material misstatement.

v) The Company has neither declared nor paid any dividend during the year.




vi) With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditor’s Report under Section 197(16)
of the Act:
In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given (o us, (he
remuncration paid by the Company to its directors during the current year is in
accordance with the provisions of Section 197 of the Act. The remuncration paid to any
director is not in excess of the limit laid down under Section 197 of the Act. The Ministry
of Corporate Affairs has not prescribed other details under Section 197(16) of the Act
which are required to be commented upon by us.

2) The Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order™) issued by the Central CGovernment
in terms of Scction 143(11) of the Act, is not applicable to the company, hence the same is not

reported by us.

For ADV & ASSOCIATES

Chartered Accountanis

Firm Registration number: 128045W
Ankir Rathi

Partner \
Membership number: 162441

Mumbai, May 30, 2022
UDIN: 22162111ALGY AA2312




Annexure “A” to the Independent Auditor’s Report

(Referred to in paragraph 1(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of
our report (o the Members of PAYNX TECHNOLOGIES PRIVATE LIMITED of even date)

Report on the Tnternal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3
of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act™)

We have audited the intemnal financial controls over financial reporting of Vertoz Advertising
Limited (“the Company™) as of March 31, 2022 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone
financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management'’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Bourd of Dircctors of the Company is responsible for establishing and mainlaining internal
financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on
Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate intemnal financial controls that were operating cffectively for ensuring the orderly and
efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to respective company's policics, the
safcguarding of its assets. the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accurncy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information,
as required under the Companies Act, 2013,

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is 1o express an opinion on the miemnal financial controls over financial reporting off
the Company based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordunce with the Guidance Note on
Audit of Tnternal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note™) issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under Section
143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls.
Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial
controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated
cffectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of
internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal
financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and
testing and cvaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed

risk.

The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.




We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained. is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the internal financial controls systom over financial reporting of the

Company,
Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance reparding the reliabulity of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted nccounting principles A
company’s internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures
that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that. in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect
the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company, (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary (o permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the compuny are being
made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3)
provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acqnsition,
use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a matcrial effect on the financial
stalements.

Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, matcrial misstatements due to
error or fraud may occur and not be detected.

Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future
periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions. or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial
reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating cffectively as at
March 31, 2022, based on the internal control over financial reporting crileria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on
Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India.

For A DV & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration number: 128045W.
Ankit Rathi \
Partner \
Membership number: 162441

UDIN : 22162441 ALGYAA2312 |
Mumbai, May 30, 2022




PAYNX TECHNOLOGIES PRIVATE LIMITED
mmmum.mmm.mnmm
Corporate kientity Numnber : UT2900MH2010P TC203628
Balance Shaet As On 31st March, 2022
(Figures in "000)
Flguras as ot the | Figuresasat the
Note end of current | end of previous
" Ne reporting period | reporting Period
2 2011-22 2020-21
A EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
1 Shareholders' hnds
(@) Shure capiral i L] 1W00.00 | % 100.00
|b) Reserves and surplus 2 g 598868 | % AL50.04
{b) Money Received against share war tents R - I® -
2 Share application money pending aflotments L 1 - |1 -
3 Non-current liabilities
() Longrerm borrowings 1 = 688,78
{b) Other Long Term Liabilities R o | -
(<] Long Lterm provision L4 - I®
4 Current labilities
() Shore Tarm Rorrowings 4 < An081.30 | T #8.22288
() Trade payables 5
[A)total o utstanding dues of micro snterprises and simall enterprises 1 858,35 | € 10437
{B) totol ourstanding dues of Craditaes other than rmicro wntsre e snd small enterprises < 807.40 |1 4293.62
(c) Other cusrent liabilities 1 - = .
(d) Short-term provisions 6 R 145190 | = 5,660.88
® 50,282.63 | % 84,724.08
B ASSETS
1 Non-current smats
(i (1) Proparty, Plant and Equipment / 1 54721 (% HOS 64
(1) Intangible assets T g -
(i) Capitn! Work In progress 1 - L]
{v) Intangible Assets under Devslopment L] 1 -
(b) Non-current investments 8 L 330,25 | ¢ 34075
() Deterred Tax Assets b 9227 |® B0.93
(d) Long term loans and Advances X L -
(@) Dther Non Current Assets L] - |u -
2 Current assets
(m) Current Investments L | N
(L) tnventories q - |z
(c) Trade recefvables 9 1 J26L7L % LLASN 1%
[d) Cash and cash wquivalents 0 b 185.23 |t 1791529
(€} Short-term loans and advances 1 1 4551597 | ® $2.603.72
(1) Other Current Assers 12 |t 35000 | 2 350.00
) XS0l (v sa72408
|NOTES To AccounTs 0]
Notes referred to above and Netes ta Accounts attached there 1o form an integral part of the Audited Financiol Statement
This is the Statenent of Assets and Liobilites referred 1o in our Repor of even date.
FOR PAYNX TECHNOLOGIES PRIVATE LIMITED
), @ I~ ALY
Hirenkumar Shah Rusiklal Shah
Director Director
DIN: 00092739 DIN: 00091585




PAYNX TECHNOLOGIES PRIVATE LIMITED
602, AVIOR, NIRMAL GALAXY, L.B.S. MARG, OPP. JOHNSON & JOHNSON, MULUND w)
Corporate Identity Number : U72900MH2010PTC203628
Statement of Profit and Loss for the Year Ended 31st March 2022
(Figures in '000)
Particulars Note | Figures for the current | Figures for the previous
No. reporting period reporting period
2021-22 2020-21
| Revenue from operations (gross) 13 |® 25,70247 | ® 19,897.33
Less: Excise Duty/GST/Taxes T = IR -
Net Revenue from operations (net) L 4 25,702.47 | ® 19,897.33
0 Other Income 14 |® 1,753.71 | % 5,640,34
I Total Income (I+11) T 27,456.18 | ® 25,537.68
IV Expenses
(a) Cost of Services 15 |% 337268 | ® -2,372.79
[b) Purchase of Stock in Trade
(c) Changes in inventories of finished goods, work-in-progress and T - 2 -
stock-In-trade
(d) Employee benefits expenses 16 (® 15,654.73 | ® 13,048.00
{e) Finance costs 17 |® 167352 | 9,448.23
(f) Depreciation and amortisation expenses 8 |x 25843 | ¢ 41301
(g) Other expenses 18 |® 351761 % - 2,728.69
Total Expenses = 24,476.97 |2 23,265.13
V  Profit before exceptional and extraordinary iteam and tax b 2979.21 | ® 2,272.54
Vi Exceptional iteams 3 2 - = -
Vil Profit before extraordinary iteam and tax . 297921 |® 2,272.54
Vill Extraordinary Iteams L 4 - 1% -
X Profit before Tax X 297921 |% 2,272.54
X Tax Expense:
{a) Current tax expense X 76092 | X 701.79
Excess / Short Provision L4 -108.40 | ¥ -
(b) Deferred tax 2 -11.34 | ® -26.51
X! Profit / (Loss) for the period from continuing operations T 233803 | % 1,597.26
Xil Profit / (Loss) from discontinuing operations X - | -
Xl Tax from discontinuing operations L - |® -
XIvV Profit/ (Loss) from discontinuing operations = - |® -
XV  (Loss) for the Period 2 2,338.03 | ¢ 1,597.26
XVI Eamning per equity share:
(1) Basic T 23380 | % 159.73
(2) Diluted L1 23380 | ® 159.73
NOTES TO ACCOUNTS 19
Notes referred to above and Notes to Accounts attached there to form an integral part of the Audited Financial Statement
This is the Statement of Assets and Liabilities referred to in wnepmofm date.
FOR ADV & ASSOCIATES : ~. FOR PAYNX TECHIIO(DGIES PRIVATE LIMITED
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS -
FRN: 128045W | MRN: 162441 Qﬁ%‘;
CcA A& Rasiklal Shah
\ Director
u:uu: 22162441ALGYAA2312\ * _ : DIN: 00091585
PLACE: MUMBAI N
DATE: 30.05.2022




PAYNX TECHNOLOGIES PRIVATE LIMITED
602, AVIOR, NIRMAL GALAXY, LB.S. MARG, OPP. JOHNSON & JOHNSON, MULUND (W) - 400080
Corporate Identity Number : UT72900MH2010PTC203628
Cash Flow Statement as on 31st March, 2022
(Figures in '000) |
Figuresas atthe | Figures as at the
Particulars Note No. end of current end of previous
reporting period | reporting Period
2021-22 2020-21
Profit before taxation (a) T 297921 | % 2,272.54
Add: Non Operating Expense
Depreciation 4 25843 | ¢ 413.01
Interest Expense b 167352 % 5,448.23
(b) b 1,931.95| % 9,861.24
Less: Non Operating Income
Interest Income X 1,753.71 | % 5,640.34
(c) L 1,753.71| © 5,640.34
Operating profit before working capital changes d={a+bc) | T - 3,157.45| ® 6,493.44
Decrease /(Increase) In Trade Receivables T 9,376.54 | % -9,778.36
Decrease/(Increase) In Loans & Advances (Assets) X 7,087.75| % -32.57
Decrease/(Increase) in Inventories L 4 - -
Decrease/(Increase) in Other Current Assets ] - I® 3422
Increase /(Decrease) in Other Long Term Liabilities L 4 - -
Increase /(Decrease) in Trade Payables T -2,740.14 | -10,516.48
Increase /(Decrease) in Other Current Liabllities T - L 4 -
Increase /(Decrease) in Provisions T -5,208.98 | ¢ -803.28
(e) T 8,515.18 | ® -17,718.48
Cash generated from operations [d+e) | X 1167262 % -11,225.04
Taxes Paid b 65252 | % 701.79
Net cash used in operating activities (a) |[= 11,020.11 [ ® -11,926.82
|B: Cash flows from investing activities:
Interest & Other Income ® 175371 | % 5,640.34
Non-Current Invertment in WOS - US ¢ - X =
Fixed Assets Addition L ¥ - R -27.14
| Net cash Generated from investing activities (B) T 175371 | ¢ 5,613.20
C: Cash Flows from financing activities:
Increase in borrowing L] -28,830.36| ® 25,799.68
Interest Expenses L -1,67352 | T -9,448.23
Fixed Deposit z - |x -
Net cash generated from financing activities (€) % -30,503.88 | © 16,351.45
D : Net increase in cash and cash equivalents = (A+B+C) D={A+B+C)| ® -17,73006 | 10,037.83
E : Cash and Cash equivalents at beginning of period (E) T 1791529 | ¢ 787745
F: Cash and cash equivalents at end of period = (D+E) (D+E) |% 18523 | ® 17,915.29
NOTES TO ACCOUNTS 19
Notes referred to above and Notes to Accounts attached there to form an integrol part of the Audited Financioi Statement
This Is the Statement of Assets ond Liabilities referred to in our n-mqmm
|FOR ADV & ASSOCIATES . =
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
FRN: 128045W | MAN: 162441
A Rathi
Partner
UDIN: 22162441ALGYAA2312
PLACE: MUMBAI
DATE: 30.05.2022




Note -1. SHARE CAPITAL

PAYNX TECHNOLOGIES PRIVATE LIMITED
NOTES ANNEXED TO AND FORMING PART OF THE BALANCE SHEET

Particulars Figures as at the end of current reporting period Figures as at the end of previous reporting
Number of shares 2021-22 Number of shares 2020-21
(a) Authorised 1,00,000 100% 1,00,000 100%
10000 Equity shares of Rs.10/- each with
voting rights
(b) Issued, Subscribed and Paid up 1,00,000 100% 1,00,000 100%
10000 Equity shares of Rs.10 each with
voting rights
Total 1,00,000 100% 1,00,000 100%
List of Shareholders helding more than 5% share capital
Name of Shareholders No. of Shares % Value/Share Total Value

1.Mr. Hirenkumar Rasiklal Shah 4000 Eqg. 4,000 1 1060 40,000
Sharesof Rs.10/- each
2.Mr. Ashish Rasiklal Shah 4000 Eq. 4,000 5 1660 40,000
Sharesof Rs.10/- each

TOTAL 8,000 8.00% 10.00 80,000

NOTE 1A. SHARES HELD BY PROMOTORS

Current Reporting Period

5rNo. IPromotor's Name No of shares % of total shares % Change during the year
1 Mr. Hirenkumar Rasiklal Shah 4,000 40% 15%
2 Mr. Ashish Rasiklal Shah 4,000 40% 15%
3 Mr. Rasiklal Shah - 0% -100%
4 Mrs. Ranjanben Shah - 0% -100%
Previous reporting Period
SrNo. IPromu‘tor’s Name No of shares % of total shares % Change during the year
1 Mr. Hirenkumar Rasiklal Shah 2,500 25% 0%
2 Mr. Ashish Rasiklal Shah 2,500 25% 0%
3 Mr. Rasiklal Shah 2,500 25% 0%
4 Mrs. Ranjanben Shah 2,500 25% 0%
MNOTE- 1B. STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
Current Reporting Period
Related Balance at Changes in Equity
Balance at the beginning of the current Changes in Equity Share Capital [the beiginning of A Balance at the end of the
reporting period due to prior period error the cm.'rent . L current reporting period
reporting period
10,000 - 10,000 - 10,000

Previous reporting Period

Balance at the beginning of the previous
reporting period

Changes in Equity Share Capital
due to prior period error

Related Balance at
the beiginning of
the previous
reporting period

Changes in Equity
Share Capital during
the previous year

Balance at the end of the
previous reporting period

10,000

10,000

10,000
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PAYNX TECHNOLOGIES PRIVATE LIMITED
NOTES ANNEXED TO AND FORMING PART OF THE BALANCE SHEET

Note 2 RESERVES AND SURPLUS

(Figures in '000)

Figures as at the end of

Figures as at the end of

Particulars current reporting period previous reporting Period
2021-22 2020-21
(A) Securities premium account
Opening balance z - X -
Closing balance T - X -
(B) Surplus / (Deficit) in Statement of Profit
and Loss
Opening balance £ 4.650.64 | X 3,053.38
Add: Profit / (Loss) for the year 2 2,338.03| X 1,597.26
Closing Balance E S 6,988.68 | £ 4,650.64
Total E 4 6,988.68 | £ 4,650.64
Note 3 LONG TERM BORROWINGS
Figures as at the end of Figures as at the end of
Particulars current reporting period previous reporting Period
2021-22 2020-21
UNSECURED LOANS
Loan From Bank X o 688.78
TOTAL | £ @ E 4 688.78

Note 4 SHORT TERM BORROWINGS

Figures as at the end of

Figures as at the end of

Particulars current reporting period previous reporting Period
2021-22 2020-21
UNSECURED LOANS
(a) Loan From Related Parties X 29,368.90| X 60,904.18
(b) Loans from Banks £ 712.40) X 7,318.70
(c) Loan from Others X 10,000.00 | X -
TOTAL | £ 40,081.30 | 68,222.88

Note 6 SHORT TERM PROVISIONS

Figures as at the end of

Figures as at the end of

Particulars current reporting period previous reporting Period
2021-22 2020-21

(a) Provision for employee benefits

PF, ESIC & MLWF Payable £ 132681 114.19

Salary Payable Z 166.73 4,700.00

(b) Provision - for TAX

Provision for Income Tax({Prior Years) X - 4 154.67

Provision for Income Tax{Current Years) Z 76092 | X 701.79

TDS Payable X 15062 | X 778.98

(c) Provision - Others

GST Payable k3 - B -

Audit Fees Payable 4 24095 | X 211.25
Total] 1,451.90 ]| £ 6,660.88
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PAYNX TECHNOLOGIES PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES ANNEXED TO AND FORMING PART OF THE BALANCE SHEET

Note 8 NON CURRENT INVESTMENTS

(Figures in '000)

Particulars Figures as at the end of Figures as at the end of
current reporting period previous reporting Period
2021-22 2020-21
AdMeridian Inc. - Share Capital % 66.90 | X 66.90
HueAds Inc - Share Capital % 65.09 | X 65.09
OwnRegistrar Inc - Share Capital % 66.59 | X 66.59
QualiSpace Inc. - Share Capital .4 66.59 | X 66.59
Vokut Inc - Share Capital X 65.09 | X 65.09
Total | X 330.25 | X 330.25

Note 10 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Particulars Figures as at the end of Figures as at the end of
current reporting period previous reporting Period
2021-22 2020-21
A) Cash In Hand % 14.21 X 9.47
B) Bank Balance 4 171.01| X 9,949.00
C) Fixed Deposits % - X 7,956.82
Total] X 185.23 | X 17,915.29

Note 11 SHORT TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES

Particulars Figures as at the end of Figures as at the end of
current reporting period previous reporting Period
2021-22 2020-21
Loans and advances to related parties 4 8,859.10| X 5,840.95
Loan to Staff X 62.50 | X -
Advance to Others S 34,914.75 11X 44,250.81
Balances with Revenue Authorities
GST Receivable % 1,333.16 | X 2,077.38
TDS Receivable = 346.46 | X 434.58
Total] X 45,515.97 | X 52,603.72

Note 12 OTHER CURRENT ASSETS

Particulars

Figures as at the end of
current reporting period

Figures as at the end of
previous reporting Period

2021-22 2020-21
Rent Deposit .4 350.00| X 350.00
Others X - X -
350.00 | X 350.00

QO 4
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PAYNX TECHNOLOGIES PRIVATE LIMITED
NOTES ANNEXED TO AND FORMING PART OF THE BALANCE SHEET

Note 5 TRADE PAYABLES

(Figures in '000)

Figures For the Current Reporting Period 2021-22
Outstanding for following periods from due date
Particulars of pyment Total
Less than 1 More than
Year 1-2 Years | 2-3 Years §Vasis
MSME z < T 85836 (X — z = ¥ B858.36
Others z 73165 61.50 | 9.25]% = ¥ B802.40
Dispute dues-MSME % - Z - £3 - = - z -
Dispute dues X - T - £ - X - z -
Others X - X - < - 5 - 4 -
Total Ed 73165| % 919.86| % 9.25| % - ¥ 1,660.75
Figures For Previous Reporting Period 2020-21
Outstanding for following periods from due date
Particulars of peyment Total
Les::::n . 1-2 Years | 2-3 Years M:;::::n
MSME B4 - z - T 107.27 ) X - ¥ 107.27
Others T 192.48 | % 5958 | = 5450)% 3,987.06 | £ 4,293.62
Dispute dues-MSME Z - Z - £ 3 - Z - E -
Dispute dues Z - Z - X - Z - z -
Others G - % - X - G - % -
Total Ed 19248 | % 5958 | ¥ 161.77 | ¥ 3,987.06 | ¥ 4,400.89

Note 9 TRADE RECEIVABLES

(Figures in '000)

Figures For the Current Reporting Period 2021-22
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Particulars Total
Less than 6 | 6 Months - More than
1-2 Years| 2-3 Years
Months 1Year 3 Years
Undisputed Trade Receivables- Considered
T 2,668.94 | = = E 9410 49867|% 3,261.71
Goods
Undisputed Trade Receivables- Considered % ) % ) % ) % ) 2 ) * )
Doubtful
Disputed Trade Receivables- Considered
z - = -z - ]z - = - = -
Goods
Disputed Trade Receivables- Considered
z - =z -z - ]z - = - = -
Doubtful
Others X - % - 53 - X - 53 - 3 -
Total ¥ 2,668.94|% - £ = Ed 94.10 | ¥ 49867 |% 3,261.71
Figures For Previous Reporting Period 2020-21
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Particulars Total
Less than 6 | 6 Months - — — More than
Months 1Year e i 3 Years
Undisputed Trade Receivables- Considered % 11,177.89 | . z 318.75 ) z 1,141.61 | = 12,638.25
Goods
Undisputed Trade Receivables- Considered
z - = -1 - = - = - = -
Doubtful
Disputed Trade Receivables- Considered
z - = L S | - = - = -
Goods
Disputed Trade Receivables- Considered
z - = - = - ]z - 1= - = -
Doubtful
Others X - G - s - % - i - 3 -
Total ¥ 11,177.89 | £ = ¥ 318.75| - ¥ 1,141.61 | ¥ 12,638.25




PAYNX TECHNOLOGIES PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES ANNEXED TO AND FORMING PART OF THE PROFIT & LOSS ACCOUNT

Note 13 REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS

(Figures in ‘D00)

Figures for the Figures for the
. current reporting | previous reporting
Particulars =, -
period period
2021-22 2020-21
Sale of Services £ 2570247 | % 19,8B97.33
Total - Sales % 25,702.47 | X 19,897.33
Note 14 OTHER INCOME
Figures for the Figures for the
Particulars current reporting | previous reporting
period period
2021-22 2020-21
Other Income = 4 1184 127073
Interest on Loans % 1,74187 )| = 3,B85.80
interest on FD T = I 483 81
Total] X 1,753.71 | % 5,640.34
Note 15 DIRECT SERVICE EXPENSES
Figures for the Figures for the
Particulars current rf:mdlng previous Teporlmg
period period
2021-22 2020-21
Search Ads T 3,32543 1% -2,384.89
ft e & Services X 47351 % 12.10
Total| 3,372.68 | -2,372.79
Note 16 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES
Figures for the Figures for the
Particalire current rf!mdlng previous Teporlmg
period period
2021-22 2020-21
Salaries and wages I 1564473 | 2 13,031.00
Directors Remuneration I = I =
staff Welfare T 1000 ) 17.00
Bonus I = I =
Total] 15,654.73 | T 13,048.00
Note 17 FINANCE COST
Figures for the Figures for the
Particulars current rf!poﬂlng previous fepnrtmg
period period
2021-22 2020-21
Interest on CLUCC and OD £ 12518 1 62468
Foreign Exchange Gain/Loss £ 5800 53293
Interest on loan e 4 140707 | % 8,265.84
Bank Charges I B327|% 2478
Ed -
Total| 1,673.52 | % 9,448.23
Note 18 OTHER EXPENSES
Figures for the Figures for the
current reporti revious reporting
Particulars . porting ] ¥ . po
period period
2021-22 2020-21
Repairs & Maintenance e 4 11026 | X 3280
Local Conveyance I 3266 792
Audit Fees X 4600 | % 40.00
Bad Debts x 103.07 | X =
Office Expenses I 932(|% 40.00
Professional/Legal Fees £ 18241 (% 55.10
interest on Late Payment of TDS % 45001 F 30.69
Interest on Late Payment of Service Tax / GST I 1162 7124
Interest on Income Tax I 7768 X =
Insurance Expense % 11251 -
Profession Tax - Company £ 250 | 2.50
Rounding Off I 000 -0.00
Sundry Balance W/off I - I -B.60
Lease Rent Office % 2544341 % 2,354 63
Internet Expenses =7 14991 1499
Utility Expenses X 32651 B87.42
Total | X 3,517.61 | % 2,728.69
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PAYNX TECHNOLOGIES PRIVATE LIMITED ; ay NX

Notes forming part of the Standalone Financial Statements for the period ended 31 March 2022

BACKGROUND:
PayNX Technologies Private Limited (the Company) was incorporated on June 2, 2010. The financial
statements prepared for the Company and they relate to the period from April 1, 2021 to March 31,
2022. The Company provides Other IT Related Business Services and other allied services to domestic/
oversees clients.

Note 19: SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES ADOPTED BY THE COMPANY:

a. Basis of preparation of financial statements:
The financial statements are prepared in accordance with Indian Generally Accepted Accounting
Principles (“GAAP”) under the historical cost convention on the accrual basis of accounting and
comply in all the material aspects with the accounting standards notified under section 133 [The
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, as amended] and other provisions of the new Companies Act,
2013, as applicable to the Company.

b. Operating Cycle:
The Company is primarily engaged in the business of Information Technology The Company has
considered its operating cycle as 12 months and all assets and liabilities have been classified as
current or non-current as per the criteria set out in the Revised Schedule Il to the new Companies
Act, 2013.

C. Use of estimates:
The preparation of financial statements requires the management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and the disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts
of revenues and expenses during the period reported. Actual results could differ from those
estimates. Any revision to accounting estimates is recognized prospectively in the current and
future periods.

d. Fixed Assets:
Fixed assets are stated at their original cost of acquisition or construction less accumulated
depreciation. Cost includes taxes, duties, freight and other incidental expenses related to
acquisition. Fixed Assets sold during the year and profit/ (loss) arising on sale is recognized and
accounted for in the year of sale. During this year some of assets have reinstated at 5% of its
residual value as per Scheduled Il of the new Companies Act, 2013.

e. Depreciation/ Amortization:
Depreciation/amortization on fixed assets is provided as per Schedule Il to the Companies Act,
2013 which requires depreciating the asset over its useful life as prescribed in section 123 read
with Schedule Il — Part C of the new Companies Act, 2013.

Individual assets booked as per their book value and depreciated as per useful life of the assets.

Assets having costing T 10,000 or less have been depreciated at a computed rate as per method

laid under the act in the year of purchase.
1echnologles p
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PAYNX TECHNOLOGIES PRIVATE LIMITED ; ay NX

Notes forming part of the Standalone Financial Statements for the period ended 31 March 2022

f. Impairment:
The carrying amounts of assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date to determine if there is
any indication of impairment based on internal/external factors. An impairment loss is recognized
wherever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is the greater of the asset’s net selling price and value in use. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value at the weighted average
cost of capital.

Reversal of impairment loss is recognized immediately as income in the statement of profit and
loss.

During the year impairment loss of ¥ NIL is recognized with following break-up and taken into
books of account.

Sr. | Particulars Amountin¥
Computers NIL
Furniture & Fixture NIL
Office Equipment NIL

Total NIL

E. Leases:
Leases where the lessor effectively retains substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership of
the leased term, are classified as operating leases. Operating lease payments are recognized as
an expense in the statement of Profit and Loss on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

h. Revenue Recognition:
Revenue from contracts priced on a time and material basis are recognized when services are
rendered and related costs are incurred.

Revenue from software implementation services is recognized on the achievement of the
milestones or performance of the specified tasks/ activities over the related period, as per the
terms of the specific contract.

Revenue from deputation services is recognized on accrual basis as per the terms of contract.

i. Foreign Currency Transactions:
(i) Initial Recognition
Foreign currency transactions are recorded in the reporting currency, by applying to the
foreign currency amount the exchange rate between the reporting currency and the
foreign currency at the date of the transaction.

(ii) Conversion
Foreign currency monetary items are reported using the closing rate. Non-monetary items
which are carried in terms of historical cost denominated in a foreign currency are reported
using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction.

(iii) Exchange Differences




PAYNX TECHNOLOGIES PRIVATE LIMITED

PayNX

Notes forming part of the Standalone Financial Statements for the period ended 31 March 2022

J

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items or on reporting
company's monetary items at rates different from those at which they were initially
recorded during the year, or reported in previous financial statements, are recognized as
income or as expenses in the year in which they arise.

Taxation:

Income-tax expense comprises Current tax and Deferred tax charge or credit.

(i)

(i)

Provision for current tax is made on the assessable income at the tax rate
applicable to the relevant assessment year. Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) eligible
for set off in subsequent years, (as per tax laws) is recognized as an asset by way
of credit to the statement of Profit and Loss only if there is convincing evidence of
its realisation. At each balance sheet date, the carrying amount of MAT Credit
Entitlement receivable is reviewed to reassure realisation.

The Deferred tax Asset and Deferred tax Liability is calculated by applying tax rate
and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the Balance Sheet
date. Deferred tax Assets arising mainly on account of brought forward losses and
unabsorbed depreciation under tax laws, are recognized, only if there is a virtual
certainty of its realisation, supported by convincing evidence. Deferred tax Assets
on account of other timing differences are recognized, only to the extent there is
a reasonable certainty of its realisation. At each Balance Sheet date, the carrying
amount of Deferred tax Assets are reviewed to reassure realisation.

k. Employee Benefits :

n.

a) Short Term Employee Benefits:

b)

All employee benefits payable within twelve months of rendering the service are recognized

in the period in which the employee renders the related service.

Post-Employment Benefits:

Retirement benefits to employees comprise of Provident Fund contributions. Contribution
to defined contribution retirement benefit schemes are recognized as an expense when

employees have rendered services entitling them to contributions.

Earnings Per Share:

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable
to equity shareholders (after deducting preference dividends and attributable taxes) by the

weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period.

Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets:

Provisions involving a substantial degree of estimation in measurement are recognized when
there is a present obligation as a result of past events and it is probable that there will be an
outflow of resources. Contingent Liabilities are not recognized but are disclosed in the Financial
Statements. Contingent Assets are neither recognized nor disclosed in the Financial Statements.

Cash and Cash Equivalents:
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Notes forming part of the Standalone Financial Statements for the period ended 31 March 2022

20.

21.

22.

23.

The Company considers all highly liquid financial instruments, which are readily convertible into
cash and have original maturities of three months or less from the date of purchase, to be cash
equivalents.

CONTINGENT LIABILITY:
Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debt T Nil (previous year Rs Nil)

OPERATING LEASES:
The Company do not have any lease obligation during the period under audit.

Based on information’s available with the Company, there are no suppliers registered as micro,
small or medium enterprise under “The Micro, Small and Medium Enterprise Development Act,
2006” as at March 31, 2022 and hence disclosure, if any, relating to amounts unpaid as at the
year end and together with interest paid/payable as required under the said Act have not been

given.
DEFERRED TAX:
(Amount in )
Sr. . As at As at
Particulars
No. 31/03/2022 | 31/03/2021
(i) | Deferred tax Liability on account of :
Depreciation (92,268) (80,929)
(ii) | Deferred tax asset on account of :
a) Unabsorbed Depreciation Nil Nil
b) Employee Benefits - leave Nil Nil
Encashment & Gratuity
c) On Account of disallowances Nil Nil
d) Carried Forward Losses Nil Nil
Deferred Tax Asset/(Liability) Nil Nil
Less: Reversal During the year Nil Nil
TOTAL (92,268) (80,929)

In consideration of prudence, the deferred tax asset has not been recognized in the accounts
and the same would be considered at an appropriate time keeping in view the availability of
sufficient taxable income against which such deferred tax asset can be realized.

24. The disclosure required under Accounting Standard 15 employee Benefit notified in the

Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules 2006, is given below:
During the period under audit, the Company do not have any obligation towards Gratuity, Leave
Encashment or any other defined benefit under AS-15.

Technologles p
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PAYNX TECHNOLOGIES PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes forming part of the Standalone Financial Statements for the period ended 31% Marfﬁ 2022

25. Particulars of Un-hedged foreign Currency Exposure as the Balance Sheet date:

During period under audit, the company does not have any un-hedged foreign currency

exposure as on balance sheet date.

26. Segment Reporting:

The risk-return profile of the Company’s business is determined predominantly by the nature

of its services. Accordingly, the business segment constitutes the primary segment for

disclosure of segment information.

Company is, at present, primarily engaged in a single business segment of Information

Technology Company and operates only in a single geographical segment i.e. India. Accordingly,

no disclosures are made in terms of Accounting Standard AS — 17 relating to “Segment

Reporting”.

27. Related Party Transaction
Disclosure of transaction with Related Parties, as required by Accounting standard AS — 18

relating to Related Party Disclosure’ are given here under. Related parties as defined under
Clause 3 of the accounting Standard AS — 18 have been identified based on Representations
made by and information available with the Company.

[Note: Related Party relationships as identified by the Company have been relied upon by the
Auditors.]

List of related parties with whom transactions were carried out during the year and description of

relationship:
(Amount in )
FY 2021-22 FY 2020-21
Net-off
Name of _ ) Nature of Amount of 0/s amounts | Net-off Amount 0/s amounts
Relafed Relationship Transaction | Transactions | carriedinthe | of Transactions carried in the
Parties for Balance Sheet for Balance Sheet
FY 2021-22 FY 2021-22 FY 2020-21 FY 2020-21
M. HESeE T Nil Nil Nil Nil
: ; Remuneration
Hirenkumar Director
Loan from :
Shah : (28,42,493) (28,42,493) (3,52,94,422) Nil
Directors
Managerial ; : ; ;
Mr. Ashish : Remuneration Ml B Ml N
Shah Digestor Loan from
X (20,23,653) | (2,74,64,480) (2,52,67,439) (2,54,40,827)
Directors
e Director Wiahagetial 8,42,000 Nil Nil (8,42,000)
Shah Remuneration
Mes; Managerial
Rajanben Director 8 : Nil (7,33,687) Nil (16,01,411)
Remuneration
Shah
Mis. Artliana [ -Rebitivon of Purchases Nil Nil Nil (19,01,998)
Shah Director
Sales Nil Nil 1,11,77,170

1,13,21,082
—

2
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PAYNX TECHNOLOGIES PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes forming part of the Standalone Financial Statements for the period ended 31 March 2022

Vertoz
Advertising
Limited

Sister Concern
where
Promoters/
Directors having
significant
control

Purchases

33,25,431

Nil

96,790

Nil

Loan

(32,62,548)

(14,54,424)

18,08,124

18,08,124

Adzurite
Solutions Pvt
Ltd

Sister Concern
where
Promoters/
Directors having
significant
control

Sales

91,80,000

1,06,48,800

Nil

3,18,753

Loan

Nil

Nil

(4,02,539)

Nil

Qualispace
Web Services
Pvt Ltd

Sister Concern
where
Promoters/
Directors having
significant
control

Purchases

Nil

Nil

Nil

(1,07,266)

Loan

Nil

(1,23,990)

31,389

(1,23,990)

Trunkoz
Technologies
Pvt Ltd

Sister Concern
where
Promoters/
Directors having
significant
control

Rent

12,62,295

(11,36,062)

17,31,562

Nil

Loan

Nil

18,60,080

(38,38,254)

18,60,080

Hashjini Pvt.
Ltd.

Sister Concern
where
Promoters/
Directors having
significant
control

Loan

(12,38,425)

(14,02,929)

(80,479)

(1,64,504)

Netztrack
Solutions

Sister Concern
where
Promoters/
Directors having
significant
control

Loan

45,40,104

63,06,233

(33,05,696)

17,66,129

Admeridian
Inc.

Sister Concern
where
Promoters/
Directors having
significant
control

Sales

Nil

Nil

11,06,850

Nil

Hueads Inc.

Sister Concern
where
Promoters/
Directors having
significant
control

Loan

Nil

(20,008)

(1,32,587)

(20,008)

Adcanny Inc.

Sister Concern
where
Promoters/
Directors having
significant
control

Loan

Nil

75,386

2,344

75,386

Adzesto Inc.

Sister Concern
where
Promoters/
Directors having
significant
control

Loan

Nil

68,683

54,853

68,683
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PAYNX TECHNOLOGIES PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes forming part of the Standalone Financial Statements for the period ended 31% Marfﬁ 2022

Sister Concern
where
Promoters/
Directors having
significant
control

Boffoads Inc. Loan Nil 68,751 1,55,374 68,751

Sister Concern
where
Promoters/
Directors having
significant
control

Flairads Inc. Loan Nil 68,607 (26,075) 68,607

Sister Concern
where
Promoters/
Directors having
significant
control

Admida Inc. Loan Nil 37,121 4,14,387 37,121

Sister Concern
where Sales 91,48,600 Nil 91,48,600 Nil
Promoters/
Directors having
significant
control

Adokut Inc.

Loan (35,885) Nil 35,885 35,885

Sister Concern
where
Qualispace Promoters/

Inc. Directors having
significant
control

Loan Nil 52,180 Nil 52,180

28. As the Company is not a manufacturing company, the information required under Clause3 (ii) (a)
and Clause 4C of Part Il of the Companies Act, 1956 has not been given.

29. The balances of sundry debtors, sundry creditors, loans and advances are subject to reconciliation
and confirmation and are as per books of account only. In the opinion of the management, the
reconciliation, if any, will not materially affect the loss of the Company for the year.

30. In the opinion of the Management, all the current assets, loans and advances have a value on
realization in the ordinary course of business equal to the amount at which they are stated and
all provisions for liabilities are adequate and are not less than the amount considered necessary.

31. Expenditure in foreign currency — Nil (P.Y. Nil/-)

32. Earning in Foreign Currency (On Cash Basis) —¥ 1,36,78,855/-
(As per Receipt & Payment A/c from Tally)  (Amount in %)
Particulars FY 2021-22
Receipt from Export against Invoice 1,37,37,260

Advance against Export Services -

Exchange Gain/(Loss) on remittance (58,405)

Total Earning in Foreign Currency

) 1,36,78,855
(On Cash Basis)

of advances — Nil (P.Y. Nil)

B
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PAYNX TECHNOLOGIES PRIVATE LIMITED Payw

Notes forming part of the Standalone Financial Statements for the period ended 31 March 2022

34. On account of application of Schedule Ill as per the new Companies Act, 2013 for the preparation
of financial statements, the disclosures, classification and presentation made in this financial
statement have been significantly impacted / changed. Previous year’s figures have been
regrouped / reclassified wherever necessary to correspond with the current year’s classification
/ disclosure.

o e

HIRENKUMAR SHAH
Director

DIN: 00092739
PLACE: MUMBAI
DATE: 30.05.2022




801, Empress Nucleus
A D V & AS SOCIATES Gaotharf) Road, Opp. Little Flower School,

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS Andheri (East), Mumbai—400 069
Tel.: 022 2683 2313

E-mail: advassociates@gmail.com

Independent Auditor’s Report

To
The Members of Paynx Technologies Private Limited

Report on the Audit of the standalone Financial Statements:

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Standalone Financial Statements of Paynx
Technologies Private Limited ("the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at
31% March, 2021, the Statement of Profit and Loss, the Statement of Cash Flows for the
year ended on that date, and a summary of the significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “the Standalone Financial Statements”).
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, the aforesaid Standalone Financial Statements give the information required by the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner SO required and give a true and fair view in
conformity with the Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act and
other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the
Company as at 31 March, 2021, the profit and its cash flows for the year ended on that
date.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit of the Standalone Financial Statements in accordance with the
Standards on Auditing specified under section 143(10) of the Act (SAs). Our responsibilities
under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Standalone Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the
Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the independence requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the Standalone Financial Statements under the provisions of the Act
and the Rules made there under, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the ICAI's Code of Ethics. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our

audit opinion on the Standalone Financial Statements.

Information other than the Standalone Financial Statements and Auditor’s
Report thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other
information. The other information comprises the information included in the Management




Discussion and Analysis, Board’s Report including Annexure to Board’s Report, Business
Responsibility Report, Corporate Governance and Shareholder’s Information, but does not
include the Standalone Financial Statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the standalone Financial Statements does not cover the other information
and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Standalone Financial Statements, our responsibility is to
read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the Standalone Financial Statements or our knowledge
obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information; we are required to report that fact. We have
nothing to report in this regard.

Management’s Responsibility for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of
the Act with respect to the preparation of these standalone Financial Statements that give a
true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance and cash flows of the
Company in accordance with the Accounting Standards and other accounting principles
generally accepted in India. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets
of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection
and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that
are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of
the Standalone Financial Statements that give a true and fair view and are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Standalone Financial Statements, management is responsible for assessing
the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations or has no

realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting
process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Standalone Financial
Statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,




and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high
level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these Standalone Financial Statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and

maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Standalone Financial Statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act,
we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate
internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

« Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the Standalone Financial
Statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Qur conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Standalone Financial Statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the Standalone Financial Statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the Standalone Financial Statements that,
individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably
knowledgeable user of the Standalone Financial Statements may be influenced. We
consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our
audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any
identified misstatements in the Standalone Financial Statements.




We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them
all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safequards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the Standalone Financial Statements
of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in
our auditor’s report unless law or requlation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing SO would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
1.As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best
of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss and the Statement of Cash Flow
dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the relevant books of account.

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Standalone Financial Statements comply with the
Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31° March,
2021 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as
on 31 March, 2021 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of
the Act.

f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of
the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, since in our opinion and
according to the information and explanation given to us, the same is NOT applicable to
the company.

g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance




with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our
opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to

us:

i. The Company does not have any pending litigation which would impact its financial
position.

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts; as
such the question of commenting on any material foreseeable l0ss€s thereon does
not arise.

jii. There were nNO amount which was required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the company.

2. The Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 (‘the Order”) issued by the Central
Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, is not applicable to the company.

For ADV & Associates
Chartered Accountants
FRN: 128045W

E ),l N\
¥\

Ox)i

Ankit Rathi (]

Partner
Place: Mumbai M.No.:162441
Date: 29" November, 2021 UDIN: 22162441AAAAAR8712




PAYNX TECHNOLOGIES PRIVATE LIMITED

602, AVIOR, NIRMAL GALAXY, L.B.S. MARG, OPP. JOHNSON & JOHNSON,MULUND (W)
Corporate Identity Number : U72900MH2010PTC203628

STATEMENT OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES AS ON 31ST MARCH, 2021

Particul Note N Amount As At Amount As At 31st
SIS ote NO-1 315t Mar. 2021 Mar. 2020
1. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
(1) Shareholder's Funds
(a) Share Capital 2 1,00,000 1,00,000
(b) Reserves and Surplus 3 46,50,640 30,53,376
(2) Share Application Money Pending Allotment
(3) Non-Current Liabilities
(a) Long-Term Borrowings 6,88,781 13,42,094
(b) Other Long Term Liabilities - -
C) Deferred Tax Liabilities g -
(4) Current Liabilities
(a) Short-Term Borrowings 4 6,82,22,882 4,17,69,888
(b) Trade Payables S 92,27,573 1,49,17,368
(c) Other Current Liabilities 6 8,92,748 71,56,343
(d) Short-Term Provisions 7 9,41,458 3,07,808
Total Equity & Liabilities 8,47,24,082 6,86,46,877
ILASSETS
(1) Non-Current Assets
(a) Fixed Assets 8
(i) Gross Block 36,59,600 36,32,460
(i) Depreciation 28,53,963 |- 24,40,949
(iii) Net Block 8,05,637 11,91,511
(b) Non-Current Investments 9 3,30,248 3,30,248
(c) Deferred Tax Assets (Net) 80,929 54,422
(d) Long Term Loans And Advances - -
(2) Current Assets
(a) Inventories - -
(b) Trade Receivables 10 1,26,38,251 28,59,890
(c) Cash and Cash Equivalents 11 1,79,15,298 78,77,455
(d) Short-Term Loans And Advances 12 5,26,03,719 5,25,71,146
(e) Other Current Assets 13 3,50,000 37,62,205
Total Assets 8,47,24,082 6,86,46,877
NOTES TO ACCOUNTS 1

Notes referred to above and Notes to Accounts attached there to form an integral part of the Audited Financial Statement

This is the Statement of Assets and Liabilities referred to in our Report of even date.
FOR ADV & ASSOCIATES

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS ?
FRN: 106456W | MRN: 162441 N

CA Ankit Rathi
Partner

UDIN: 22162441AAAAAR8712
PLACE:MUMBAI

DATE: 29.11.2021

FOR PAYNX TECHNOLOGIES PRIVATE LIMITED

Hirenkumar Shah
Director

DIN: 00092739

At

Rasiklal Shah
Director
DIN: 00091585




602, AVIOR, NIRMAL GALAXY, L.B.S. MARG, OPP.
Corporate Identity Number : U72900MH2010PTC203628

STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE PERIO

PAYNX TECHNOLOGIES PRIVATE LIMITED

JOHNSON & JOHNSON,MULUND (w)

D ENDED ON 31ST MARCH, 2021

This is the Statement of Profit & Loss referred to in our Report of even date.
FOR ADV & ASSOCIATES

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

FRN: 106456W | MRN: 162441

el

CA Ankit Rathi

Partner \\;y
UDIN: 22162441AAAAAR8712
PLACE: MUMBAI

DATE: 29.11.2021

Notes referred to above and Notes to Accounts attached there to form an integral part of the Audited Financial Statement

particul Note No Amount As At Amount As At 31st
Artietiars o | 315t Mar. 2021 Mar. 2020
Revenue:
Revenue From Operations ( Net of Taxes ) 14 1,98,97,334 2,60,65,672
Income From Non-Operation ( Net of Taxes ) 15 56,40,343 15,76,979
Total Revenue 2,55,37,677 2,76,42,651
Expenses:
Direct Service Expense 16 - 23,72,794 55,49,588
Employment Benefit Cost 17 1,30,47,998 1,47,45,885
Finance Cost 18 94,48,230 17,50,721
Other Expenses 19 27,28,687 42,38,925
Depreciation 8 4,13,014 6,47,358
Total Expenses 2,32,65,135 2,69,32,478
Profit Before Tax - PBT 22,72,542 7,10,173
Tax expense:
(1) Income Tax Provision
Current Tax 7,01,785 2,62,808
Excess / Short Provision

(2) Deferred tax - 26,507 |- 47,996
Profit/(Loss) for the period After Tax- PAT 15,97,264 4,95,361
No. of Shares 10,000 10,000
Earning per Equity Share:

(1) Basic 159.73 49.54

(2) Diluted 159.73 49.54
NOTES TO ACCOUNTS 1

FOR PAYNX TECHNOLOGIES PRIVATE LIMITED

\~
W

Hirenkumar Shah
Director
DIN: 00092739

?\A)WL

Rasiklal Shah
Director

DIN: 00091585




602, AVIOR, NIRMAL GALAXY, L.B.S. MARG
Corporate Identity Num
CASH FLOW STATEMENT AS ON 31ST MARCH, 2021

PAYNX TECHNOLOGIES PRIVATE LIMITED

, OPP. JOHNSON & JOHNSON, MULUND (W) - 400080
ber : U72900MH2010PTC203628

FOR ADV & ASSOCIATES
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
FRN: 106456W | MRN

CA Ankit Rathi
Partner

UDIN: 22162441AAAAARS
PLACE: MUMBAI

DATE: 29.11.2021

Notes referred to above and Notes to Accounts attached there to form an integral part of the Audited Financial Statement
This is the Statement of Assets and Liabilities referred to in our Report of even date.

FOR PAYNX TECHNOLOGIES PRIVATE LIMITED

RH-

"+ Hifenkumar Shah  Rasiklal Shah
\ ~~Director Director
DIN: 00092739 DIN: 00091585

particul j N N Amount As At Amount As At
articulars ote No. 31st Mar. 2021 31st Mar. 2020
A : Cash flows from operating activities:
Profit before taxation (a) 22,72,542 7,10,173
Add: Non Operating Expense
Depreciation 4,13,014 6,47,358
Interest Expense 94,48,230 17,50,721
(b) 98,61,244 23,98,079
Less: Non Operating Income
Interest Income 56,40,343 15,76,979
(c) 56,40,343 15,76,979
Operating profit before working capital changes d=(a+b-c) 64,93,443 15,31,273
Working Capital Changes:
Decrease /(Increase) In Trade Receivables - 97,78,361 |- 12,28,613
Decrease/(Increase) in Loans & Advances (Assets) - 32,574 |- 3,97,05,394
Decrease/(Increase) in Inventories - -
Decrease/(Increase) in Other Current Assets 34,12,205 |- 28,80,138
Increase /(Decrease) in Other Long Term Liabilities - -
Increase /(Decrease) in Trade Payables - 56,89,795 46,91,794
Increase /(Decrease) in Other Current Liabilities - 62,63,595 19,71,627
Increase /(Decrease) in Provisions 6,33,650 1,11,567
{e) - 1,77,18,470 | - 3,70,39,156
Cash generated from operations (d+e) - 1,12,25,027 |- 3,55,07,883
Taxes Paid 7,01,785 2,62,808
Net cash used in operating activities (A) - 1,19,26,812 | - 3,57,70,691
B : Cash flows from investing activities:
Interest & Other Income 56,40,343 15,76,979
Non-Current Invertment in WOS - US - -
Fixed Assets Addition - 27,140 |- 2,40,148
Net cash Generated from investing activities (B) 56,13,203 13,36,831
C: Cash Flows from financing activities:
Increase in borrowing 2,57,99,681 3,66,23,381
Interest Expenses - 94,48,230 |- 17,50,721
Fixed Deposit
Net cash generated from financing activities (c) 1,63,51,452 3,48,72,659
D : Net increase in cash and cash equivalents = (A+B+C) D=(A+B+C) 1,00,37,843 4,38,799
E : Cash and Cash equivalents at beginning of period (E) 78,77,455 74,38,656
F: Cash and cash equivalents at end of period = (D+E) (D +E) 1,79,15,298 78,77,455
NOTES TO ACCOUNTS 20




PAYNX TECHNOLOGIES PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes Forming Integral Part of the Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2021

Note 2: Share Capital

Particulars

31st Mar. 2021

" Amount As At Amount As At
Partlcylars 31st Mar. 2021 31st Mar. 2020
AUTHORIZED CAPITAL
10,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each. 1,00,000 1,00,000
1,00,000 1,00,000
ISSUED , SUBSCRIBED & PAID UP CAPITAL
To the Subscribers of the Memorandum
Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each fully paid up. 1,00,000 1,00,000
Total Value in INR 1,00,000 1,00,000
DETAILS OF SHAREHOLDERS HOLDING 5% OR MORE
1. Mr. Rasiklal Hathichand Shah 2500 Eq. Shares of Rs.10/- each 25,000 25,000
2.Mr. HirenkumarRasiklal Shah 2500 Eq. Sharesof Rs.10/- each 25,000 25,000
3. Mrs. Ranjanben Rasiklal Shah 2500 Eq. Shares of Rs.10/- each 25,000 25,000
4.Mr. Ashish Rasiklal Shah 2500 Eq. Sharesof Rs.10/- each 25,000 25,000
Total Value in INR 1,00,000 1,00,000
Note 3 : Reserve & Surplus
Amount As At Amount As At

31st Mar. 2020

(a) Suplus from Profit & Loss Account

Particulars

31st Mar. 2021

Opening Balances 30,53,376 25,58,015
Add: Profit/(Loss) for the period 15,97,264 4,95,361
Total Value in INR 46,50,640 30,53,376
Note 4 : Short Term Borrowings
Amount As At Amount As At

31st Mar. 2020

Unsecured
(a) Loan from Related Parties

Particulars

31st Mar. 2021

Loan From Other Related Parties 6,09,04,177 3,45,56,183
Unsecured
(b) Loans and advances from Banks 73,18,705 72,13,705
Total Value in INR (A+B) 6,82,22,882 4,17,69,888
Note 5 : Trades Payable
Particulars Amount As At Amount As At
31st Mar. 2021 31st Mar. 2020
Sundry Creditors 92,27,573 1,49,17,368
Total Value in INR 92,27,573 1,49,17,368
Note 6 : Other Current Liabilities
Amount As At Amount As At

31st Mar. 2020

Statutory Remittance

Provident Fund Payable 1,13,772 1,08,480

A profession Tax Payable § z
/ DS 7,78,976 2,62,862
Advance from Customers - 67,85,001
Total Value in INR 8,92,748 71,56,343

Note 7 : Short Term Provisions

Particulars Amount As At Amount As At
31st Mar. 2021 31st Mar. 2020

Provision for Income Tax AY 20-21 1,54,673 -
Provision for Income Tax AY 21-2 7,01,785 2,62,808
Other Provisions /7 85,000 45,000
Total Value in INR 9,41,458 3,07,808
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PAYNX TECHNOLOGIES PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes Forming Integral Part of the Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2021

Particulars

31st Mar. 2021

Note 9 : Other Non Current Investment
A Amount As At Amount As At
Rartielsts 31st Mar. 2021 | 31st Mar. 2020
AdMeridian Inc. - Share Capital 66,898 66,898
HueAds Inc - Share Capital 65,089 65,089
OwnRegistrar Inc - Share Capital 66,586 66,586
QualiSpace Inc. - Share Capital 66,586 66,586
Vokut Inc - Share Capital 65,089 65,089
Total Value in INR 3,30,248 3,30,248
Note 10: Trade Receivables
Amount As At Amount As At

31st Mar. 2020

Trade Receivables,Outstanding for Less than Six Months
Related Party

Particulars

31st Mar. 2021

Others 1,26,38,251 28,59,890
Total Value in INR 1,26,38,251 28,59,890
Note 11 : Cash & Cash Equivalent
Amount As At Amount As At

31st Mar. 2020

Cash Balance 9,472 6,618
Fixed Deposit 79,56,823 75,09,296
Bank Balances 99,49,003 3,61,541
Total Value in INR 1,79,15,298 78,77,455
Note 12 : Short Terms Loans and Advances
g Amount As At Amount As At
Particulars
31st Mar. 2021 | 31st Mar. 2020

Loans and advances to related parties 5,00,91,761 4,84,17,369
Loan to Staff - 83,334
Balance with Revenue Authorities

TDS Receivable 4,34,575 1,60,731
GST Receivable 20,77,384 39,09,712
Total Value in INR 5,26,03,719 5,25,71,146

" [Note

13 : Other Current Assets

Amount As At

Amount As At

PRl 31st Mar. 2021 | 31st Mar. 2020
Rent Deposit 3,50,000 8,50,000
Advance to Vendors - 29,12,205
Total Value in INR 3,50,000 37,62,205




PAYNX TECHNOLOGIES PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes Forming Part of the Profit & Loss Accounts as at 31st March, 2021

Note 14: Revenue From Operations

icul Amount As At Amount As At
paeen 31st Mar. 2021 | 31st Mar. 2020
Export Sales 1,02,55,450 2,28,12,222
Domestic Sales 96,41,884 32,53,450
Total Value in INR 1,98,97,334 2,60,65,672
Note 15 : Income From Non Operation
particul Amount As At Amount As At
el 31st Mar. 2021 | 31st Mar. 2020
Other Income 12,70,732 1,000
Foreign Exchange Gain - =
Interest on Loans 38,85,799 -
Interest on FD 4,83,813 15,75,979
Income Tax Refund - -
Total Value in INR 56,40,343 15,76,979
Note 16 : Direct Service Expenses
¢ Amount As At | Amount As At
Particulars
31st Mar. 2021 | 31st Mar. 2020
Search Ads = 23,84,889 55,07,895
Software & Services 12,095 41,693
Total Value in INR - 23,72,794 55,49,588.45
Note 17 : Employement Benefit Cost
particul Amount As At Amount As At
R 31st Mar. 2021 | 31st Mar. 2020
Salaries and Incentives 1,30,47,998 1,39,03,885
Directors Remuneration - 8,42,000
Total Value in INR 1,30,47,998 1,47,45,885
Note 18 : Finance Cost
. Amount As At | Amount As At
Particulars
31st Mar. 2021 | 31st Mar. 2020
Interest Expenses
Interest on CLUCC and OD 6,24,683 17,50,410
Foreign Exchange Gain/Loss 532,931 |- 27,930
Interest on loan 82,65,836 -
Bank Charges 24,780 28,241
Total Value in INR 94,48,230 17,50,721
Note 19 : Other Expenses
5 Amount As At | Amount As At
Particulars
31st Mar. 2021 | 31st Mar. 2020
Repairs & Maintenance 32,800 30,400
Local Conveyance 7,924 15,148
Travel-International - 61,891
Administration Expense " “
Audit Fees 40,000 50,000
Office Expenses 40,000 59,975
Professional/Legal Fees 55,100 96,513
SBC Paid on Input @ 0.5% - -
Interest on Late Payment of TDS 30,689 9,568
Interest on Late Payment of Service Tax / GST 71,240 89,785
Interest on Income Tax - -
Insurance Expense 8,494
Profession Tax - Company 2,500 2,500
Rounding Off . 2 g
Sundry Balance W/off - 8,601 -
Content Writing Charges - 3,500
Lease Rent Office 23,54,628 34,64,398
Selling & Marketing Expénses - -
Internet Expenses \ 14,994 14,994
Utility Expenses YA 87,416 3,31,760
Total Value in INR b 27,28,687 42,38,925




PAYNX TECHNOLOGIES PRIVATE LIMITED payNX

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the period ended 31°* March 2021

BACKGROUND:

PayNX Technologies Private Limited (the Company) was incorporated on June 2, 2010. These are the
eleventh financial statements prepared for the Company and they relate to the period from April 1, 2020
to March 31, 2021. The Company provides Other IT Related Business Services and other allied services to
domestic/ oversees clients.

Note 1: SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES ADOPTED BY THE COMPANY:

a. Basis of preparation of financial statements:
The financial statements are prepared in accordance with Indian Generally Accepted Accounting
Principles (“GAAP”) under the historical cost convention on the accrual basis of accounting and
comply in all the material aspects with the accounting standards notified under section 133 [The
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, as amended] and other provisions of the new Companies Act,
2013, as applicable to the Company.

b. Operating Cycle:
The Company is primarily engaged in the business of Information Technology The Company has
considered its operating cycle as 12 months and all assets and liabilities have been classified as
current or non-current as per the criteria set out in the Revised Schedule Il to the new Companies
Act, 2013.

¢ Use of estimates:
The preparation of financial statements requires the management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and the disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts
of revenues and expenses during the period reported. Actual results could differ from those
estimates. Any revision to accounting estimates is recognized prospectively in the current and
future periods.

d. Fixed Assets:
Fixed assets are stated at their original cost of acquisition or construction less accumulated
depreciation. Cost includes taxes, duties, freight and other incidental expenses related to
acquisition. Fixed Assets sold during the year and profit/ (loss) arising on sale is recognized and
accounted for in the year of sale. During this year some of assets have reinstated at 5% of its
residual value as per Scheduled Il of the new Companies Act, 2013.

e. Depreciation/ Amortization:
Depreciation/amortization on fixed assets is provided as per Schedule Il to the Companies Act,
2013 which requires depreciating the asset over its useful life as prescribed in section 123 read
~\, with Schedule Il — Part C of the new Companies Act, 2013.

Individual assets booked as per their book value and depreciated as per useful life of the assets.
Assets having costing ¥ 10,000 or less have been depreciated at a computed rate as per method
laid under the act in the year of purehase: ™ =~



PAYNX TECHNOLOGIES PRIVATE LIMITED PaYNX

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the period ended 31°* March 2021

f. Impairment:
The carrying amounts of assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date to determine if there is
any indication of impairment based on internal/external factors. An impairment loss is recognized
wherever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is the greater of the asset’s net selling price and value in use. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value at the weighted average
cost of capital.

Reversal of impairment loss is recognized immediately as income in the statement of profit and

loss.

During the year impairment loss of T NIL is recognized with following break-up and taken into
books of account.

Sr. | Particulars Amount in ?j
1. Computers NIL
2. Furniture & Fixture NIL
Office Equipment NIL
Total NIL

g. Leases:
Leases where the lessor effectively retains substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership of
the leased term, are classified as operating leases. Operating lease payments are recognized as
an expense in the statement of Profit and Loss on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

h. Revenue Recognition:
Revenue from contracts priced on a time and material basis are recognized when services are
rendered and related costs are incurred.

Revenue from software implementation services is recognized on the achievement of the
milestones or performance of the specified tasks/ activities over the related period, as per the
terms of the specific contract.

Revenue from deputation services is recognized on accrual basis as per the terms of contract.

i Foreign Currency Transactions:

(i) Initial Recognition
Foreign currency transactions are recorded in the reporting currency, by applying to the
foreign currency amount the exchange rate between the reporting currency and the
foreign currency at the date of the transaction.

(i) Conversion

Foreign currency monetary items are reported using the closing rate. Non-monetary items
which are carried in terms of historical cost denominated in a foreign currency are reported
using the exchange pat’é at the date of the transa"ctjon.

4
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PAYNX TECHNOLOGIES PRIVATE LIMITED PayNX

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the period ended 31°t March 2021

J-

(iii) Exchange Differences
Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items or on reporting
company's monetary items at rates different from those at which they were initially
recorded during the year, or reported in previous financial statements, are recognized as
income or as expenses in the year in which they arise.

Taxation:

Income-tax expense comprises Current tax and Deferred tax charge or credit.

(i) Provision for current tax is made on the assessable income at the tax rate
applicable to the relevant assessment year. Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) eligible
for set off in subsequent years, (as per tax laws) is recognized as an asset by way
of credit to the statement of Profit and Loss only if there is convincing evidence of
its realisation. At each balance sheet date, the carrying amount of MAT Credit
Entitlement receivable is reviewed to reassure realisation.

(i)  The Deferred tax Asset and Deferred tax Liability is calculated by applying tax rate
and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the Balance Sheet
date. Deferred tax Assets arising mainly on account of brought forward losses and
unabsorbed depreciation under tax laws, are recognized, only if there is a virtual
certainty of its realisation, supported by convincing evidence. Deferred tax Assets
on account of other timing differences are recognized, only to the extent there is
a reasonable certainty of its realisation. At each Balance Sheet date, the carrying
amount of Deferred tax Assets are reviewed to reassure realisation.

Employee Benefits :

@) Short Term Employee Benefits:
All employee benefits payable within twelve months of rendering the service are recognized
in the period in which the employee renders the related service.

b) Post-Employment Benefits:
Retirement benefits to employees comprise of Provident Fund contributions. Contribution
to defined contribution retirement benefit schemes are recognized as an expense when
employees have rendered services entitling them to contributions.

Earnings Per Share:

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable
to equity shareholders (after deducting preference dividends and attributable taxes) by the
weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period.

. Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets:

Provisions involving a substantial degree of estimation in measurement are recognized when
there is a present obligation as a result of past events and it is probable that there will be an
outflow of resources. Contingent Liab?lijcies are not recognized but are disclosed in the Financial
Statements. Contingent Assets.are neither recognized nor disclosed in the Financial Statements.



PAYNX TECHNOLOGIES PRIVATE LIMITED PaYNX

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the period ended 315t March 2021

The Company considers all highly liquid financial instruments, which are readily convertible into
cash and have original maturities of three months or less from the date of purchase, to be cash
equivalents.

19. CONTINGENT LIABILITY:
Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debt X Nil (previous year Rs Nil)

20. OPERATING LEASES:
The Company do not have any lease obligation during the period under audit.

21. Based on information’s available with the Company, there are no suppliers registered as micro,
small or medium enterprise under “The Micro, Small and Medium Enterprise Development Act,
2006” as at March 31, 2020 and hence disclosure, if any, relating to amounts unpaid as at the
year end and together with interest paid/payable as required under the said Act have not been
given.

22. DEFERRED TAX:
(Amount in %)

Sr. . As at As at T
Particulars
No. 31/03/2021 31/03/2020
(i) | Deferred tax Liability on account of :
Depreciation (80,929) (54,422)
(i) | Deferred tax asset on account of :
a) Unabsorbed Depreciation Nil Nil
b) Employee Benefits - leave Nil Nil
Encashment & Gratuity
¢) On Account of disallowances Nil Nil
d) Carried Forward Losses Nil Nil
Deferred Tax Asset/(Liability) Nil Nil
Less: Reversal During the year Nil Nil
TOTAL (80,929) (54,422) J

In consideration of prudence, the deferred tax asset has not been recognized in the accounts
and the same would be considered at an appropriate time keeping in view the availability of
sufficient taxable income against which such deferred tax asset can be realized.

23. The disclosure required under Accounting Standard 15 employee Benefit notified in the
Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules 2006, is given below:

During the period under audit, the Company do not have any obligation towards Gratuity, Leave



PAYNX TECHNOLOGIES PRIVATE LIMITED

24. Particulars of Un-hedged foreign Currency Exposure as the Bala

During period under audit, the company does not have any un-hedged fo

exposure as on balance sheet date.

25. Segment Reporting:

raYNX

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the period ended 315t March 2021

nce Sheet date:

reign currency

The risk-return profile of the Company’s business is determined predominantly by the nature
of its services. Accordingly, the business segment constitutes the primary segment for

disclosure of segment information.

Company is, at present, primarily

Technology Company and operates only in a single geographical segment i.e.
no disclosures are made in terms of Accounting Standard AS — 17 relating to

Reporting”.

26. Related Party Transaction

engaged in a single business segment of Information
India. Accordingly,

“Segment

Disclosure of transaction with Related Parties, as required by Accounting standard AS - 18
relating to Related Party Disclosure’ are given here under. Related parties as defined under
Clause 3 of the accounting Standard AS — 18 have been identified based on Representations

made by and information available with the Company.

[Note: Related Party relationships as identified by the Company have been relied upon by the

Auditors.]

List of related parties with whom transactions were carried out during
relationship:

the year and description of

(Amount in)

FY 2020-21 FY 2019-20
- Net-off
Name of Nature of Hatiudl et-of Net-off Amount | Net-off Amount
Related Relationshi Amount of Amount of X :
P Transaction 3 3 of Transactions of Transactions
Parties Transactions | Transactions
for Yor for for
FY 2020-21 FY 2020-21 FY 2019-20 FY 2019-20
Mr. Managenial Nil Nil Nil Nil
< 5 Remuneration

Hirenkumar Director

Loan from i
Shah £ (3,52,94,422) Nil 3,52,79,777 3,52,79,777

Directors —

Managerial . . . :
Mr. Ashish p Remuneration L il Nl LL
Shah Dirgctor Loan from

— (2,52,67,439) (2,54,40,827) (14,294) (1,73,388)
Mr. Rasiklal . M ial ;

e Director anagera. Nil (8,42,000) 4,21,000 (8,42,000)

Shah Remuneration
s Managerial
Rajanben Director gerial Nil (8,42,000) 4,21,000 (8,42,000)

Remuneration
Shah
Mrs. Archana | Relative of . :
Shah Difector Purchases Nil (19,01,998) Nil (19,01,998)
Vertoz Sister Concern Sales 1,13,21;,082 1,11,77,170 Nil Nil
Advertising where =T =
Limited Promoters/ Purchases /| .-~96,790 il 51,95,980 (30,30,415)




PAYNX TECHNOLOGIES PRIVATE LIMITED PaYNX

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the period ended 315 March 2021

Directors having
significant Loan 18,08,124 18,08,124 Nil Nil

control

Sister Concern
where Sales Nil 3,18,753 3,24,248 3,18,753
Promoters/
Directors having
significant Loan (4,02,539) Nil 4,02,539 4,02,539
control

Adzurite
Solutions Pvt
Ltd

Sister Concern
where Purchases Nil (1,07,266) 91,467 (1,07,266)
Promoters/

Directors having
significant Loan 31,389 (1,23,990) (1,38,655) (1,38,655)
control

Qualispace
Web Services
Pvt Ltd

Sister Concern | Rent 17,31,562 Nil 15,87,648 (5,96,692)
where

Trunkoz

) Promoters/
Technologies 3 -
Pyt Ltd Directors having | Loan (38,38,254) 18,60,080 (17,92,832) 56,98,334
significant
control

Sister Concern
where
Admeridian Promoters/

Inc. Directors having
significant
control

Sister Concern
where
Promoters/
Directors having
significant
control

Sister Concern
where
Qualispace Promoters/

inc. Directors having
significant

L control

Sales 11,06,850 Nil 7,94,878 Nil

Adokut Inc. Sales 91,48,600 Nil 1,30,27,579 (67,84,731)

Loan Nil 52,180 Nil 52,180

27. As the Company is not a manufacturing company, the information required under Clause3 (ii) (a) and
Clause 4C of Part Il of the Companies Act, 1956 has not been given.

28. The balances of sundry debtors, sundry creditors, loans and advances are subject to reconciliation
and confirmation and are as per books of account only. In the opinion of the management, the
reconciliation, if any, will not materially affect the loss of the Company for the year.

29. In the opinion of the Management, all the current assets, loans and advances have a value on
realization in the ordinary course of business equal to the amount at which they are stated and all

provisions for liabilities are adequate and are not less than the amount considered necessary.

30. Expenditure in foreign currency — Nil (P.Y. 90,174/-)

\P’




PAYNX TECHNOLOGIES PRIVATE LIMITED pany

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the period ended 315t March 2021

31. Earning in Foreign Currency (On Cash Basis) - ¥ 36,36,545/-
(As per Receipt & Payment A/c from Tally)  (Amount in %)

[ Particulars FY 2020-21
Receipt from Export against Invoice ] 36,99,392
Advance against Export Services -

Exchange Gain/(Loss) on remittance (62,847)
Total Earning in Foreign Currency

(On Cash Basis)

36,36,545

32. Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and outstanding net of
advances — ¥ Nil (P.Y. Nil)

33. On account of application of Schedule IiI as per the new Companies Act, 2013 for the preparation of
financial statements, the disclosures, classification and presentation made in this financial statement
have been significantly impacted / changed. Previous year’s figures have been regrouped / reclassified
wherever necessary to correspond with the current year’s classification / disclosure.

FOR RQ:IX TECHNOLOGIES PRIVATE LIMITED
p wigles po

\}.f" ,
HIREN SHAH
Director
DIN: 00092739
PLACE: MUMBAI
DATE: 29.11.2021






































































A DV & Associates

801, Empress Nucleus, Gaothan Road, Near Little Flower School, Behind Vishal Hall, Gundavali, Andheri East, Mumbai -400069

Independent Auditor’s Report

To
The Members of Paynx Technologies Private Limited

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements:

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Consolidated Financial Statements of Paynx
Technologies Private Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at
March 31, 2021, the Statement of Profit and Loss, the Statement of Cash Flows for the year
ended on that date, and a summary of the significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “the Consolidated Financial
Statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, the aforesaid Consolidated Financial Statements give the information required by the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in
conformity with the Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act and
other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the
Company as at March 31, 2021, the profit and its cash flows for the year ended on that
date.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements in accordance with the
Standards on Auditing specified under section 143(10) of the Act (SAs). Our responsibilities
under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the
Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the independence requirements that are relevant
to our audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements under the provisions of the Act and
the Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the ICAI's Code of Ethics. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the Consolidated Financial Statements.




A DV & Associates

801, Empress Nucleus, Gaothan Road, Near Little Flower School, Behind Vishal Hall, Gundavali, Andheri East, Mumbai -400069

Other Matter

We did not audit the financial statements and other information, in respect of the subsidiary
company and Associates company, in respect of subsidiary company financial statements
include total assets of Rs. 3165.38 Lakhs as at March 31, 2021, and total revenues of
Rs.231.99 Lakhs for the year ended on that date.

These financial statements and other financial information have been prepared and
submitted to us by the management. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Information other than the Consolidated Financial Statements and Auditor’s
Report thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other
information. The other information comprises the information included in the Management
Discussion and Analysis, Board’s Report including Annexure to Board’s Report, Business
Responsibility Report, Corporate Governance and Shareholder’s Information, but does not
include the Consolidated Financial Statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the Consolidated Financial Statements does not cover the other information
and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements, our responsibility is
to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the Consolidated Financial Statements or our knowledge
obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information; we are required to report that fact. We have
nothing to reporting this regard.

Management’s Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of
the Act with respect to the preparation of these Consolidated Financial Statements that give
a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance and cash flows of the
Company in accordance with the Accounting Standards and other accounting principles
generally accepted in India. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets
of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection
and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that
are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the
Consolidated Financial Statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Consolidated Financial Statements, management is responsible for
assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
management either intends to ,quuid”fi,%;ttls Company or to cease operations, or has no

/ 7.\
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realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting
process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Consolidated Financial
Statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high
level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these Consolidated Financial Statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

1. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Consolidated Financial
Statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

2. Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section
143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether
the Company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the
operating effectiveness of such controls.

3. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

4. Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the Consolidated Financial Statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

5. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Consolidated Financial
Statements, including the disclosures, and whether the Consolidated Financial
Statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

&
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Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the Consolidated Financial Statements that,
individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably
knowledgeable user of the Consolidated Financial Statements may be influenced. We
consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit
work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ji) to evaluate the effect of any
identified misstatements in the Consolidated Financial Statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them
all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of The Consolidated Financial
Statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so
would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
1. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report that:
a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the
best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by
the Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss and the Statement of Cash
Flow dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the relevant books of
account.

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Consolidated Financial Statements comply with
the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with
Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on
March 31, 2021 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the

directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2021 from being appointed as a
director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

AT
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9)

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial
reporting of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls,
since in our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to
us, the same is NOT applicable to the company.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as
amended in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the
explanations given to us :

The Company does not have any pending litigation which would impact its
financial position.

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative

contracts; as such the question of commenting on any material foreseeable
losses thereon does not arise.

There were no amount which was required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the company.

For A D V & Associates
Chartered Accountants
FRN: 128045W

ol

Ankit Rathi
Partner

Place: Mumbai M.No.: 162441
Date :29t" November, 2021 UDIN:22162441AAAAAQ7043



PAYNX TECHNOLOGIES PRIVATE LIMITED
602, AVIOR, NIRMAL GALAXY, L.B.S. MARG, OPP. JOHNSON & JOHNSON,MULUND (w)
Corporate Identity Number : U72900MH2010PTC203628
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES FOR YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2021

z Amount as at 31st |Amount as at 31st
Particulars Note No.
March 2021 March 2020
I. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
(1) Shareholder's Funds
(a) Share Capital 2 1,00,000 1,00,000
(b) Reserves and Surplus 3 - 16,33,00,445 59,94,193
(2) Share Application Money Pending Allotment
(3) Non-Current Liabilities
(a) Long-Term Borrowings 6,88,781 13,42,094
(b) Other Long Term Liabilities - -
C) Deferred Tax Liabilities -
(4) Current Liabilities
(a) Short-Term Borrowings 4 10,14,99,331 7,43,63,526
(b) Trade Payables 5 20,18,98,877 7,01,59,647
(c) Other Current Liabilities 6 8,92,748 3,71,342
(d) Short-Term Provisions 7 9,75,932 3,43,164
Total Equity & Liabilities 14,27,55,223 15,26,73,966
ILASSETS
(1) Non-Current Assets
(a) Fixed Assets 8
(i) Gross Block 64,30,307 40,18,524
(ii) Depreciation 32,67,956 |- 26,75,931
(i) Net Block 31,62,351 13,42,593
(b) Non-Current Investments 9 = =
(c) Deferred Tax Assets (Net) 80,929 54,422
(d) Long Term Loans And Advances & -
(2) Current Assets
(a) Inventories % -
(b) Trade Receivables 10 3,74,53,901 7,09,45,691
(c) Cash and Cash Equivalents 11 3,61,73,512 1,14,71,985
(d) Short-Term Loans And Advances 12 6,55,22,262 6,50,97,070
(e) Other Current Assets 13 3,62,268 37,62,205
Total Assets L 14,27,55,223 15,26,73,966

NOTES TO ACCOUNTS

FOR ADV & ASSOCIATES
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
FRN: 128045w | MRN:)J,KBZMI“

af (

CA Ankit Rathi
Partner

PLACE:MUMBAI
DATE: 29.11.2021

1

Notes referred to above and Notes to Accounts attached there to form an integral part of the Audited Financial Statement
This is the Statement of Assets and Liabilities referred to in our Report of even date.

gk

Rasiklal Shah
Director
DIN: 00091585

Hirenkumar Shah
Director

DIN: 00092739
PLACE: MUMBAI
DATE: 29.11.2021




PAYNX TECHNOLOGIES PRIVATE LIMITED

602, AVIOR, NIRMAL GALAXY, L.B.S. MARG, OPP. JOHNSON & JOHNSON,MULUND (W)

Corporate Identity Number : U72900MH2010PTC203628

CONSOLIDATED PROFIT AND LOSS STATEMENT FOR YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2021

fastiel Natéil Amount as at 31st |Amount as at 31st
articulars e No.
March 2021 March 2020
Revenue:
Revenue From Operations ( Net of Taxes ) 14 54,50,44,232 34,26,04,144
Income From Non-Operation ( Net of Taxes ) 15 74,01,253 15,76,979
Total Revenue 55,24,45,485 34,41,81,123
Expenses:
Direct Service Expense 16 65,81,32,218 31,57,28,046
Employment Benefit Cost 17 1,30,47,998 1,47,45,885
Finance Cost 18 1,91,16,635 44,89,571
Other Expenses 19 3,47,10,084 64,09,476
Depreciation 8 5,98,722 7,19,748
Total Expenses 72,56,05,657 34,20,92,727
Profit Before Tax - PBT - 17,31,60,172 20,88,397
Tax expense:
(1) Income Tax Provision
Current Tax 7,01,785 2,62,808
Excess / Short Provision -
(2) Deferred tax - 26,507 |- 47,996
Profit/(Loss) for the period After Tax- PAT - 17,38,35,450 18,73,585
No. of Shares 10,000 10,000
Earning per Equity Share:
(1) Basic - 17,383.54 187.36
(2) Diluted - 17,383.54 187.36
NOTES TO ACCOUNTS 1

Notes referred to above and Notes to Accounts attached there to form an integral part of the Audited Financial Statement
This is the Statement of Profit & Loss referred to in our Report of even date.

FOR ADV & ASSOCIATES
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANT
FIRM REGISTRATION NO: 130078W

A\

&

ok

CA Ankit Rathi “Hirenkumar Shah  Rasiklal Shah
Partner Director Director

DIN: 00092739 DIN: 00091585
PLACE:MUMBAI PLACE:MUMBAI

DATE: 29.11.2021 DATE: 29.11.2021

FOR PAYNX TECHNOLOGIES PRIVATE LIMITED




PAYNX TECHNOLOGIES PRIVATE LIMITED
602, AVIOR, NIRMAL GALAXY, L.B.S. MARG, OPP. JOHNSON & JOHNSON, MULUND (W) - 400080
Corporate Identity Number : U72900MH2010PTC203628
CONSLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT AS ON 31ST MARCH, 2021

Particulars Note No.

Amount As At Amount As At
31st Mar. 2021 31st Mar. 2020

A : Cash flows from operating activities:

Profit before taxation (a) - 17,31,60,172 20,88,397
Add: Non Operating Expense
Depreciation 5,98,722 7,19,748
Interest Expense 1,91,16,635 44,89,571
Exchange gain/loss on restatement of forex 21,09,843 1,47,338
(b) 2,18,25,200 53,56,658
Less: Non Operating Income
Interest Income 74,01,253 15,76,979
(c) 74,01,253 15,76,979
Operating profit before working capital changes d=(a+b-c) - 15,87,36,225 58,68,075
Working Capital Changes:
Decrease /(Increase) In Trade Receivables 3,34,91,789 20,14,82,553
Decrease/(Increase) in Loans & Advances (Assets) - 4,25,192 |- 4,41,96,371
Decrease/(Increase) in Inventories - -
Decrease/(Increase) in Other Current Assets 33,99,937 |- 28,80,138
Increase /(Decrease) in Other Long Term Liabilities = <
Increase /(Decrease) in Trade Payables 13,17,39,230 |- 86,36,509
Increase /(Decrease) in Other Current Liabilities 5,21,406 2,30,033
Increase /(Decrease) in Provisions 6,32,768 1,14,482
(e) 16,93,59,938 14,61,14,051
Cash generated from operations (d+e) 1,06,23,714 15,19,82,126
Taxes Paid 6,75,278 2,14,812
Net cash used in operating activities (A) 99,48,436 15,17,67,314
B : Cash flows from investing activities:
Interest & Other Income 74,01,253 15,76,979
Non-Current Invertment in WOS - US - -
Fixed Assets Addition - 24,21,417 |- 2,40,148
Net cash Generated from investing activities (B) 49,79,837 13,36,831
C : Cash Flows from financing activities:
Increase in borrowing 2,64,82,492 |- 14,79,76,384
Accumulated Profit b/f on account of Acquisition 24,07,397 -
Interest Expenses - 1,91,16,635 |- 44,89,571
Fixed Deposit - -
Net cash generated from financing activities (c) 97,73,254 |- 15,24,65,955
D : Net increase in cash and cash equivalents = (A+B+C) D=(A+B+C) 2,47,01,526 6,38,189
E : Cash and Cash equivalents at beginning of period (E) 1,14,71,985 1,08,33,796
F: Cash and cash equivalents at end of period = (D+E) (D +E) 3,61,73,512 1,14,71,985
NOTES TO ACCOUNTS 1

Notes referred to above and Notes to Accounts attached there to form an integral part of the Audited Financial Statement

This is the Statement of Assets and Liabilities referred to in our Report of even date.

FOR ADV & ASSOCIATES

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

FRN: 128045W | MRN: 162441
W /

CA Ankit Rathi

renkumar Shah Rasiklal Shah

Partner Director Director
DIN: 00092739 DIN: 00091585
PLACE:MUMBAI PLACE: MUMBAI

DATE: 29.11.2021 & DATE: 29.11.2021




PAYNX TECHNOLOGIES PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes Forming Integral Part of the Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2021

Note 2: Share Capital

Amount as at

Amount as at 31st

Faticiials 31st March 2021 March 2020
AUTHORIZED CAPITAL
10,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each. 1,00,000 1,00,000
1,00,000 1,00,000
ISSUED , SUBSCRIBED & PAID UP CAPITAL
To the Subscribers of the Memorandum
Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each fully paid up. 1,00,000 1,00,000
Total Value in INR 1,00,000 1,00,000
Note 3 : Reserve & Surplus
Pattictlars Amountasat | Amount as at 31st
31st March 2021 March 2020
(a) Suplus from Profit & Loss Account
Opening Balances 59,94,193 39,09,732
Add: Profit/(Loss) for the period 17,38,35,450 18,73,585
Add: Accumulated Profit b/f on account of Acquisition 24,07,397
Forex Revalutation Reserve 21,33,414 2,10,876
Total Value in INR 16,33,00,445 59,94,193

Note 4 : Short Term Borrowings

Amount as at

Amount as at 31st

Raitictlars 31stMarch2021 | March 2020
Unsecured
(a) Loan from Related Parties
Loan From Directors 1,13,876 1,80,926
Loan From Other Related Parties 8,86,96,943 6,69,68,895
Unsecured -
(b) Loans and advances from Banks 73,18,705 72,13,705
Others 53,69,806
Total Value in INR (A+B) 10,14,99,331 7,43,63,526

Note 5 : Trades Payable

Amount as at

Amount as at 31st

Partictlars 31st March 2021 March 2020
Sundry Creditors 20,18,98,877 6,33,74,646
Advance from Customers 67,85,001
Total Value in INR 20,18,98,877 7,01,59,647

Note 6 : Other Current Liabilities

Particulars Amount as at Amount as at 31st

31st March 2021 March 2020

Statutory Remittance

GST . .
Provident Fund Payable 1,13.772 1,08,480
TDS 7,78,976 2,62,862

Other Statutory Liability " o
Total Value in INR 8,92,748 3,71,342

7 : Short Term Provisions

Amount as at

Amount as at 31st

Eniculars 31stMarch 2021 | March 2020
Provision for Income Tax AY 19-20 - -
Provision for Income Tax AY 20-21 #£~ 1,54,673 2,62,808
Provision for Income Tax AY 21-; 7,01,785
Other Provisions 1,19,474 80,356
Total Value in INR 9,75,932 3,43,164
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PAYNX TECHNOLOGIES PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes Forming Integral Part of the Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2021

Note 9: Trade Receivables

Amount as at

Amount as at 31st

TARscdlars 31st March 2021|  March 2020
Trade Receivables,Outstanding for Less than Six Months
Related Party - B
Others 3,74,53,901 7,09,45,691
Total Value in INR 3,74,53,901 7,09,45,691

Note 10 : Cash & Cash Equivalent
Partibilars Amount asat | Amount as at 31st
31st March 2021 March 2020
Cash Balance 82,977 6,618
Fixed Deposit 79,56,823 75,09,296
Bank Balances 2,81,33,712 39,56,071
Total Value in INR 3,61,73,512 1,14,71,985
Note 11 : Short Terms Loans and Advances
Particilars Amount as at | Amount as at 31st
31st March 2021 March 2020
Loans and advances to related parties 6,30,10,304 6,09,43,293
Loan to Staff - 83,334
Balance with Revenue Authorities -
TDS Receivable 4,34,575 1,60,731
GST Receivable 20,77,384 39,09,712
Total Value in INR 6,55,22,262 6,50,97,070
Note 12 : Other Current Assets

Amount as at

Amount as at 31st

Particular
Siels 31st March 2021|  March 2020
Rent Deposit 3,62,268 8,50,000
Advance to Vendors - 29,12,205
Total Value in INR 3,62,268 37,62,205




PAYNX TECHNOLOGIES PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes Forming Part of the Consolidated Profit & Loss Accounts as at 31st March, 2021

Note 13: Revenue From Operations

Particulars Amount as at 31st| Amount as at 31st

March 2021 March 2020
Sale of services 54,50,44,232 34,26,04,144
Total Value in INR 54,50,44,232 34,26,04,144

Note 14 : Income From Non Operation

Amount as at 31st

Amount as at 31st

Rarticylars March 2021 March 2020
Other Income 30,31,642 1,000
Foreign Exchange Gain - -
Interest on Loans 38,85,799 -
Interest on FD 4,83,813 15,75,979
Income Tax Refund *
Total Value in INR 74,01,253 15,76,979

Note 15 : Direct Service Expenses

Amount as at 31st

Amount as at 31st

Fasticulars March 2021 March 2020
Search Ads - 55,07,895
Purchase of Services 61,58,60,093 30,94,81,838
Hosting & Domain Purchase 4,21,70,898 6,12,679
Media Fees Payment - -
Software & Services 1,01,228 1,25,634

Total Value in INR

65,81,32,218.27

31,57,28,046.11

Note 16 : Employement Benefit Cost

Amount as at 31st

Amount as at 31st

i March 2021 March 2020
Salaries and Incentives 1,30,47,998 1,39,03,885
Directors Remuneration - 8,42,000
Total Value in INR 1,30,47,998 1,47,45,885

Note 17 : Finance Cost

Particulars

Amount as at 31st

Amount as at 31st

March 2021 March 2020
Interest Expenses -
Interest on Loan 88,90,518 17,50,410
Foreign Exchange Gain/Loss 14,89,230 1,42,738
Bank Charges 87,36,886 25,96,423
Total Value in INR 1,91,16,635 44,89,571

Note 18 : Other Expenses

Amount as at 31st

Amount as at 31st

Rerticulars March 2021 March 2020
Repairs & Maintenance 32,800 82,194
Local Conveyance 7,924 15,148
Travel-International - 61,891
Administration Expense - -
Audit Fees 40,000 50,000
Bad Debts 2,88,83,042 -
Office Expenses 74,346 1,49,019
Professional/Legal Fees 88,492 3,05,651
SBC Paid on Input @ 0.5% 5 -
Interest on Late Payment of TDS 30,689 9,568
Interest on Late Payment of Service Tax / GST 71,240 89,785
Interest on Income Tax & -
Insurance Expense 26,205 8,494
Profession Tax - Company 2,500 1,47,006
Sundry Balance W/off - 4,903 11,163
Cbnte»nt Writing Charges - 3,500
Rent, Rates & Taxes 29,69,833 39,64,248
i \Marketing Expenses 8,91,651 4,94,405
t Expenses 14,994 14,994
. zTax - City 1,51,124 3,30,369
age Tax - State i 4,33,111 2,24,513
ofposAte Tax - Federal 8,31,952 57,802
urfding Off 2,203 |- 6,561
Eruitment Expense_s,' < -
Software Expenses | | \ 70,713 64,526
Utility Expenses ) \ 92,168 3,31,760
Total Value in INR & \Ve / 3,47,10,084 64,09,476




PayNX GROUP
Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the period ended 31 March, 2021

BACKGROUND:

PayNX Technologies Private Limited (the Company) f.k.a Vokut Exchange Private Limited and
Infraster Solutions Private Limited was incorporated on June 02, 2010. These are the consolidated
financial statements prepared for the Company and they relate to the period from April 1, 2020 to
March 31, 2021. The Company provides programmatic online advertising services and other allied

services to domestic/ overseas clients.

These consolidated financials include unaudited balance sheet of its subsidiaries and/or step-down

subsidiaries, located in US as on the date of this report.

NOTE 1: SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES:

Basis of preparation of the consolidated financial statements:

The consolidated financial statements are prepared in accordance with Generally Accepted
Accounting Principles in India (GAAP) under the historical cost convention on the accrual basis,
except for certain financial instruments which are measured on a fair value basis. GAAP comprises
mandatory accounting standards as prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013
(‘Act’) read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, and the relevant provisions of
the Companies Act, 2013 (“the 2013 Act”)/Companies Act, 1956 (“the 1956 Act”), as applicable,
Indian Accounting Standards (‘Ind AS’)/guidance notes issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (ICAl) and other generally accepted accounting principles in India.

All amounts included in the consolidated financial statements are reported in millions of Indian
rupees except share and per share data, unless otherwise stated. Due to rounding off, the
numbers presented throughout the document may not add up precisely to the totals and
percentages may not precisely reflect the absolute figures.

Principles of Consolidation:

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the following basis:

e The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of PayNX and all its
subsidiaries, which are more than 100% owned or controlled. The financial statements of the
parent company and its majority owned/controlled subsidiaries which are drawn up to the
same reporting date have been combined on a line by line basis by adding together the book
values of all items of assets, liabilities, incomes and expenses after eliminating all intra-group
balances/transactions and resulting unrealized gain/loss.

e The consolidated financial statements are prepared using uniform accounting policies for
similar transactions and other events in similar circumstances.

Use of Estimates:

The preparation of financial statements requires management to make judgments, estimates and
assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets
and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent liabilities as at the date of financial statements and
reported amounts of income and expenses during the year. Estimates and underlying assumptions
are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revision to accounting estimates is recognized in the year in
which the estimgfﬁ%ﬁ?ﬁg\zifed andin amtfuture year affected.

P
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PayNX GROUP
Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the period ended 31 March, 2021

iv. Fixed Assets:

Tangible assets are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment loss, if
any. Costs include expenditure directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset. Borrowing costs
directly attributable to the construction or production of qualifying assets are capitalized as part
of the cost. When parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives,
they are accounted for as separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment.
Subsequent expenditure relating to property, plant and equipment is capitalized only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with these will flow to the Company and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. During the period under review no intangible assets are
stated at the consideration paid for acquisition less accumulated amortization and impairment
loss, if any.

v. Investments:
Non-current investments are stated at cost less other than temporary diminution in the value of
such investments, if any. Current investments are valued at lower of cost and fair value
determined by category of investment. The fair value is determined using quoted market
price/market observable information adjusted for cost of disposal. On disposal of the investment,
the difference between its carrying amount and net disposal proceeds is charged or credited to
the statement of profit and loss.

vi. Provisions and Contingent Liabilities:
Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation as a result of past events,
it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

vii. Revenue Recognition:
The Company derives revenue primarily from online media advertising and other related services

and other products.

a) Services:
The Company recognizes revenue when the significant terms of the arrangement are
enforceable, services have been delivered and collectability is reasonably assured. The

method for recognizing revenues and costs depends on the nature of the services rendered:

A. Time and Materials Contracts:
Revenues and costs relating to time and materials contracts are recognized as the related
services are rendered. Unbilled revenues included in other current assets represent cost
and earnings in excess of billings as at the end of the reporting period. ‘Unearned
revenues’ included in other current liabilities represent billing in excess of revenue
recognized. Advance payments received from customers for which no services have been

rendered are presented as ‘Advance from customers’.

3. .chers:

~.ZoY\ The Company accounts for volume discounts and pricing incentives to customers by
~% 171l reducing the amount of revenue recognized at the time of sale.
J/ Revenues are shown net of sales tax, value added tax, goods & service tax and
applicable discounts and" ‘a"vlvtom‘/ances. » 5

V.

Page 2 of 7



PayNX GROUP
Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the period ended 31 March, 2021

o Contract expenses are recognized as expenses by reference to the stage of completion
of contract activity at the end of the reporting period.

b) Products:
Revenue from products are recognized when the significant risks and rewards of ownership
have been transferred to the buyer, continuing managerial involvement usually associated
with ownership and effective control have ceased, the amount of revenue can be measured
reliably, it is probable that economic benefits associated with the transaction will flow to the
Company and the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the transaction can be
measured reliably.

¢) OtherIncome:
Interest is recognized using the time-proportion method, based on rates implicit in the
transaction.

viii. Leases:

The Company have its office premises on lease and paid the lease on time as per the Lease

Agreement from time to time, subject to TDS provisions laid under the Income Tax Act, 1961 and
other allied acts as applicable at time being in force.

ix. Foreign currency transactions

a)

b)

<)

d)

Transaction:
The Company is exposed to currency fluctuations on foreign currency transactions. Foreign
currency transactions are accounted at the exchange rates prevailing on the date of
transaction.

Translation:

Monetary foreign currency assets and liabilities at period-end are translated at the exchange
rate prevailing at the date of Balance Sheet. The difference arising from the translation is
recognized in the statement of profit and loss, except for the exchange difference arising on
monetary items that qualify as hedging instruments in a cash flow hedge or hedge of a net
investment in a non-integral foreign operation. Such exchange differences are subsequently
recognized in the statement of profit and loss on occurrence of the underlying hedged
transaction or on disposal.

Integral Operations:

Monetary assets and liabilities are translated at the exchange rate prevailing at the date of
the balance sheet. Non-monetary items are translated at the historical rate. The items in the
statement of profit and loss are translated at the average exchange rate during the period.
The differences arising out of the translation are recognized in the statement of profit and
loss.

Non-Integral Operations:

Assets and liabilities are translated at the exchange rate prevailing at the date of the balance
sheet. The |tems lnthe statement of profit and loss are translated at the average exchange
»res é "ing out t;?me\ra nslation are transferred to foreign
. rOpz the dlsposaT of\a nQp-integral foreign operation, the

(4
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PayNX GROUP
Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the period ended 31* March, 2021

cumulative balance of Foreign Exchange Gain /(Loss) which relates to that operation is
recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

The amended Ind AS 21 provides an irrevocable option to the Company to amortize exchange
rate fluctuation on long term foreign currency monetary asset/liability over the life of the
asset/liability or March 31, 2021, whichever is earlier. The amendment is applicable
retroactively from the financial year beginning on or after December 7, 2006.

The Company did not elect to exercise the option.

x. Depreciation and Amortization
The Company has provided for depreciation using straight line method over the useful life of the

assets as prescribed under part C of Schedule Il of the Companies Act, 2013 except in the case of

following assets which are depreciated based on useful lives estimated by the Management:

Class of Asset Estimated Useful Life

Computer Equipment’s (Data Computers & Servers) 3 -6years
Furniture and Fixtures 5-10years
Office Equipment 5 years
Vehicles 8 years
Intangible Assets — Ingenious Plex Platform 8 years

For the class of assets, based on technical assessment, management believes that the useful lives

as given above best represents the period over which assets are expected to be used. No assets

under finance lease subject to amortization over their estimated useful life or the lease term,

whichever is lower.

xi. Employee Benefits
Provident Fund and Social Security Benefit:

Employees receive benefits of the provident fund and other social security as per the
governmental laws and regulation of time being in force. The Company have paid all its statutory

liability towards its employee in timely manner and there are no pending dues as on date. The
employee and employer each make periodic contributions to the plan. A portion of the

contribution is made to the employee’s provident fund, while the remainder of the contribution

is made to the government administered pension fund.

xii. Taxes

a) Income tax:

The current charge for income taxes is calculated in accordance with the relevant tax
regulations. Tax liability for domestic taxes was computed under Minimum Alternate Tax

(MAT). MAT credit is being recognized if there is convincing evidence that the Company will
pay normal tax after the tax holiday period-and:the.resultant asset can é.me ’S‘U’r’éd r:: bly.
The excess tax paid under MA provusnons being ‘over and above regu?&%ﬁﬁébility can be
carried forward for a period Q?;té_n'Véars from.the year of récognition ahd is available for set
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PayNX GROUP
Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the period ended 31°* March, 2021

b)

off against future tax liabilities computed under regular tax provisions, to the extent of MAT
liability.

Deferred Tax:

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the future tax consequences attributable
to timing differences that result between the profit offered for income taxes and the profit as
per the financial statements of each entity in the group.

Deferred taxes are recognized in respect of timing differences which originate during the tax
holiday period but reverse after the tax holiday period. For this purpose, reversal of timing
difference is determined using first in first out method.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using the tax rates and tax laws that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date. The effect on deferred tax
assets and liabilities of a change in tax rates is recognized in the period that includes the
enactment/substantive enactment date.

Deferred tax assets on timing differences are recognized only if thereis a reasonable certainty
that sufficient future taxable income will be available against which such deferred tax assets
can be realized. However, deferred tax assets on the timing differences when unabsorbed
depreciation and losses carried forward exist, are recognized only to the extent that there is
virtual certainty that sufficient future taxable income will be available against which such
deferred tax assets can be realized.

Deferred tax assets are reassessed for the appropriateness of their respective carrying
amounts at each balance sheet date.

The Company offsets, on a year on year basis, it's current and non-current tax assets and
liabilities, where it has a legally enforceable right and where it intends to settle such assets
and liabilities on a net basis.

Xiii. Earnings Per Share:

a)

b)

Basic:

The number of equity shares used in computing basic earnings per share is the weighted
average number of shares outstanding during the year excluding equity shares held by
controlled trust.

Diluted:
The number of equity shares used in computing diluted earnings per share comprises the
weighted average number of equity shares considered for deriving basic earnings per share,
and also the weighted average number of equity shares that could have been issued on the
conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares. Dilutive potential equity shares are deemed
converted as of the proportionate during the period, unless issued at a later date. The number
of equity shares and potentially dilutive equity shares are adjuste,/g,fo.rzany stock splits and
bonus shares issued. B 3
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PayNX GROUP
Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the period ended 31° March, 2021

xiv. Cash Flow Statement:
Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby net profits before tax is adjusted for
the effects of transactions of a non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or future cash
receipts or payments. The cash flows from regular revenue generating, investing and financing

activities of the Company are segregated.

xv. Related Party Transactions:
Disclosure of transaction with Related Parties, as required by Accounting standard AS - 18
relating to Related Party Disclosure’ are given here under. Related parties as defined under Clause
3 of the accounting Standard AS — 18 have been identified based on Representations made by
and information available with the Company.
[Note: Related Party relationships as identified by the Company have been relied upon by the
Auditors.]

List of related parties with whom transactions were carried out during the year and description of

relationship:
FY 2020-21 FY 2019-20 j
Net-off Net-
Name of Nature of et-o Sivelt Net-off Amount | Net-off Amount
Related Relationshi Amount of Amount of : ;
P Transaction o . of Transactions of Transactions
; of Transactions Transactions
Parties " n for for
or or
FY 2020-21 FY 2020-21 FY 2019-20 FY 2019-20
Mr. iy S il il Nil Nil
, . Remuneration
Hirenkumar Director
Loan from
Shah . 3,52,94,422 (14,645) 3,52,79,777 3,52,79,777
Directors
Managerial ; . . .
Mr. Ashish . Remuneration ol N il Nil
Shah Dl Loan from
Difectors (2,58,37,463) (2,60,10,851) (14,294) (1,73,388)
Mr. Rasiklal " Managerial "
Shah Director Remiinaration Nil (8,42,000) 4,21,000 (8,42,000)
Ms. Managerial
Rajanben Director g 4 Nil (8,42,000) 4,21,000 (8,42,000)
Remuneration
Shah
Mrs. Gunja Relative of .
Shah Director Loan 11,956 Nil (5,039) (11,956)
Mrs. Archana Relative of . 2
Shah Director Purchases Nil (19,01,998) Nil (19,01,998)
a;terec""cem Sales 113,221,082 | 1,11,77,170 Nil Nil
Vertoz Proenr\oters/
Advertising X X Purchases 96,790 Nil 51,95,980 (30,30,415)
- Directors having
Bt significant
g Loan 18,08,124 18,08,124 Nil Nil
control
Sister Concern
. where Sales Nil 3,18,753 3,24,248 3,18,753
Adzurite
. Promoters/
Solutions Pvt = .
Ltd Directors having
significant Loan (4,02,539) Nil 4,02,539 4,02,539
control
Sister Concern | Sales 83,75,096 82,69,279 32,57,592 68,02,046
. where
QUahSPaCS Promoters/ Purchases (1,07,266) /13,131,975 (1,07,266)
Web Services . N 7 &
Pyt Ltd Directors having Q\\ Y
v significant Loan / (64,57,036), (1,57,46,279)
control { je ¥

Page 6fof7




PayNX GROUP

Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financ

ial Statements for the period ended 31°** March, 2021

Trunkoz
Technologies
pvt Ltd

Sister Concern
where
Promoters/
Directors having
significant
control

Rent

17,31,562

Nil

15,87,648

(5,96,692)

Loan

(54,04,249)

(36,48,210)

(41,93,435)

17,56,039

Vertoz
Advertising
FZ-LLC

Sister Concern
where
Promoters/
Directors having
significant
control

Sales

8,92,69,823

Nil

65,00,300

Nil

Purchases

14,26,44,301

(7,46,55,430)

4,29,72,826

(1,48,78,418)

Loan

(15,870)

(19,224)

5,66,13,323

(3,354)

Vertoz
Limited

Sister Concern
where
Promoters/
Directors having
significant
control

Sales

Nil

Nil

1,53,27,214

Nil

Purchases

2,42,171

(30,22,598)

2,33,24,087

(25,39,918)

Loan

17,332

(6,77,226)

1,48,46,061

(6,94,558)

Vertoz Inc

Sister Concern
where
Promoters/
Directors having
significant
control

Sales

9,56,533

20,83,829

30,01,068

28,90,436

Purchases

8,99,16,437

(7,46,19,316)

2,44,23,608

(6,13,559)

Loan

22,70,037

(14,63,506)

11,43,62,717

8,06,531

AdMozart Inc

Sister Concern
where
Promoters/
Directors having
significant
control

Sales

15,02,91,966

3,72,522

6,54,49,596

10,95,840

Purchases

17,44,54,789

(3,01,52,046)

10,35,59,266

(61,55,431)

Adzurite Inc

Sister Concern
where
Promoters/
Directors having
significant
control

Sales

34,971

4,33,160

3,92,536

4,08,834

Purchases

1,26,557

(1,24,958)

Nil

Nil

AdNet
Hoildings Inc

Sister Concern
where
Promoters/
Directors having
significant
control

Loan

(942)

36,826

37,768

37,768

PubNx Inc

Sister Concern
where
Promoters/
Directors having
significant
control

Sales

3,46,022

3,59,142

10,693

17,933

Purchases

9,026

(8,912)

Nil

Nil

Zkraft Inc

Sister Concern
where
Promoters/
Directors having
significant
control

Sales

715

2,117

694

1,447

FOR PAYNX TECHNOLOGIES PRI

HIRENKUMAR SHAH "
DIRECTOR

DIN: 00092739

PLACE: MUMBAI
DATE: 29/11/2021
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NAKRANI & CO.

Chartered Accountant

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
To
The Members of QUALISPACE WEB SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED

Report on the audit of the financial statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of QUALISPACE WEB SERVICES PRIVATE
LIMITED (“the Company”), which comprise the balance sheet as at March 31, 2022, and the
Statement of Profit and Loss and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (‘Act’) in
the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2022, its profit for
the year ended on that date.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards on auditing specified under section 143
(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in
the auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the code of ethics issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit
of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the rules thereunder, and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the code of
ethics.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in
our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and
we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Reporting of key audit matters as per SA 701, Key Audit Matters are not applicable to the Company
as it is an unlisted company.

Information other than the financial statements and auditors’ report thereon

The Company’s board of directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the Board’s Report including Annexures to
Board’s Report, Business Responsibility Report but does not include the financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

102, Yogashree, Opp. Holy Cross School, O bai Pune Road, Thane (W), MH — 400 601
Phone: -022 25476903 Email: - client@canp.co.in, Website: www.canp.co.in



In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the standalone financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management'’s responsibility for the financial statements

The Company’s board of directors are responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act
with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the
financial position, financial performance of the Company in accordance with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India, including the accounting standards specified under section
133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the financial statement that give a true and fair view and are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the
Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The board of directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting
process.

Auditor’s responsibilities for thé audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Companies Act, 2013, we
are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal
financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls




Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to
cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or in
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the
financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors
in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to
evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards. From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these
matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter
or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated
in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

The provisions of the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 is not
applicable to the Company since

(a) It is not a subsidiary or holding company of a public company;

(b) Its paid-up capital and reserves and surplus are not more than Rs.1 Crores as at the balance sheet
date;

(c) Its total borrowings from banks and financial institutions are not more than Rs.1 Crores at any
time during the year; and

(d) Its turnover for the year is not more than Rs.10 Crores during the year.

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:




(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit; ‘

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far
as it appears from our examination of those books;

(c) The balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss, dealt with by this report are in agreement
with the books of account;

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the accounting standards specified
under section 133 of the Act, read with rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014;

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2022
taken on record by the board of directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2022
from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

(f) Since the Company’s turnover as per last audited financial statements is less than Rs.50 Crores
and its borrowings from banks and financial institutions at any time during the year is less than Rs.25
Crores, the Company is exempted from getting an audit opinion with respect to the adequacy of the
internal financial controls over financial reporting of the company and the operating effectiveness of
such controls vide notification dated June 13, 2017; and

(g) The Company being a private limited company, the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s
Report in accordance with the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended, in respect of
whether the remuneration paid by the Company to its directors during the year is in accordance
with the provisions of section 197 of the Act is not applicable; and

(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule
11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us;

a. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position;

b. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there
were any material foreseeable losses; and

c. There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

For M/s. Nakrani & Co.
Chartered Accountant
Firm Registration No.130078W
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Bharat Patel

Proprietor

Membership No. 132078
Place: Thane

Date: 30" May 2022
UDIN: 22132078 ALGLXS2912




QUALISPACE WEB SERVICES PVT LTD
602, AVIOR, NIRMAL GALAXY,L.B.S. MARG, OPP. JOHNSON & JOHNSON, MULUND (W) - 400080.
Corporate Identity Number : U93000MH2017PTC294200

AUDITED STATEMENT OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES AS ON 31ST MARCH, 2022

(Figures in '000)

Figures as at the | Figures as at the
Particulars Note | end of current end of previous
No. | reporting period | reporting Period
2021-22 2020-21
A EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
1 Shareholders’ funds
(a) Share capital 1 X 100.00 | X 100.00
(b) Reserves and surplus 2 X 7,010.97 | X 3,087.02
(b) Money Received against share warrents 4 - X -
2 Share application money pending allotments X - X -
3 Non-current liabilities
(a) Long-term borrowings X - X -
(b) Deferred tax liabilities (net) X 100.16 | X 70.04
(c) Other Long Term Liabilities X - X -
(d) Long term provision X - X -
4 Current liabilities
(a) Short Term Borrowings 3 X 18,330.47 | X 12,170.01
(b) Trade payables 4
(A) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises - -
(B) total outstanding dues of Creditors other than micro enterprises and small X 2,792.56 | X 5,853.47
enterprises
(c) Other current liabilities X - X -
(d) Short-term provisions 5 X 2,337.12 | X 2,327.39
TOTAL X 30,671.28 | X 23,607.93
B ASSETS
1 Non-current assets
(a (i) Property, Plant and Equipment 6 X 3,646.02 | X 2,375.58
(i) Intangible assets X - X -
(iii) Capital Work in progress X - X -
(iv) Intangible Assets under Development X - X -
(b) Non-current investments X - X -
(c) Deferred Tax Assets X - X -
(d) Long term loans and Advances 7 X 50.00 | X 50.00
(e) Other Non Current Assets X - X -
2 Current assets
(a) Current Investments X - X -
(b) Inventories 4 - X -
(c) Trade receivables 4 2,532.71 | X 8,703.26
(d) Cash and cash equivalents 9 X 549.12 (X 890.42
(e) Short-term loans and advances 10 |X 23,893.43 | X 11,577.67
(f) Other Current Assets X - X 11.00
TOTAL X 30,671.28 | X 23,607.93

NOTES TO ACCOUNTS

Notes referred to above and Notes to Accounts attached there to form an integral part of the Audited Financial Statement

This is the Statement of Assets and Liabilities referred to in our Report of even date.
FOR NAKRANI & CO.

Chartered Accountants = \:‘ )/

FRN: 130078W | MRN: 1320787 p.N/ \Q\ Q;/
NOAN s <<?\/

Jpnurion e ) )

- /3 /Dimple Shah
Bharat S Patel “/} Director
Proprietor —— DIN: 07788365
Place: THANE PLACE: MUMBAI

Date: 30th May, 2022
UDIN :22132078ALGLXS2912

Date: 30th May, 2022

O tm

Gunja Shah
Director
DIN: 07788340




QUALISPACE WEB SERVICES PVT LTD
602, AVIOR, NIRMAL GALAXY,L.B.S. MARG, OPP. JOHNSON & JOHNSON, MULUND (W) - 400080.
Corporate Identity Number : U93000MH2017PTC294200

STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH 2022

(Figures in '000)

Particulars Note Figures for the Figures for the
No. | current reporting | previous reporting
period period
2021-22 2020-21
I Revenue from operations (gross) 11 |X 51,593.98 | X 31,331.39
Less: Excise Duty/ GST / Taxes -
Revenue from operations (net) X 51,593.98 | X 31,331.39
Il Other Income 12 |X 216.78 | X 95.09
Il Total Income (I+1) i 51,810.76 | X 31,426.48
IV Expenses
(a) Cost of materials consumed 13 |X 21,987.62 | X 13,074.87
(b) Employee benefits expenses 14 |X 19,691.47 | X 13,805.95
(c) Finance costs 15 |X 312.42 X 314.04
(d) Depreciation and amortisation expenses 6 b ¢ 1,486.16 | X 1,403.83
(e) Other expenses 16 |X 3,088.12 | X 2,014.62
Total Expenses R 46,565.79 | X 30,613.31
V Profit before exceptional and extraordinary iteam and tax h 5,244.97 | X 813.17
VI Exceptional Iteams X - X -
VIl Profit before extraordinary iteam and tax h 5,244.97 | X 813.17
VIl Extraordinary Iteams R - B -
IX Profit before Tax X 5,244.97 | X 813.17
X Tax Expense:
(a) Current tax expense X 1,290.90 | X 236.00
(b) Excess / Short Provision 3 - £ 177.71
(c) Deferred tax b3 30.11 | X -5.66
Xl Profit / (Loss) for the period from continuing operations h 3,923.95 [ X 405.12
Xl Profit / (Loss) from discontinuing operations £ - £ -
Xlll Tax from discontinuing operations X - X -
XIV Profit/ (Loss) from discontinuing operations £ - X -
XV Profit/ (Loss) for the Period i 3,923.95 | X 405.12
XVI Earning per equity share:
(1) Basic b 39240 | X 40.51
(2) Diluted i 392.40 | X 40.51

In terms of our report attached.
FOR NAKRANI & CO.

Chartered Accountants

FRN: 130078W | MRN: 1320/{F>~N’

FOR QUA SPACE WEB SERVICES PVT LTD

NG

i‘SimpIe Shah Gunja Shah

Bharat S Patel Director Director
Proprietor DIN: 07788365 DIN: 07788340
Place: THANE PLACE: MUMBAI

Date: 30th May, 2022 Date: 30th May, 2022

UDIN : 22132078ALGLXS2912




QUALISPACE WEB SERVICES PVT LTD

602, AVIOR, NIRMAL GALAXY,L.B.S. MARG, OPP. JOHNSON & JOHNSON, MULUND (W) - 400080.

Corporate Identity Number : U93000MH2017PTC294200
AUDITED CASH FLOW STATEMENT AS ON 31ST MARCH, 2022

(Figures in '000)

Figures for the Figures for the
Particulars Note No. current reporting previous reporting
period period
2021-22 2020-21
A : Cash flows from operating activities:
Profit before taxation (a) X 5,244.97 | X 813.17
Add: Non Operating Expense
Depreciation R 1,486.16 | X 1,403.83
Capital Work in Process X - X -
Interest Expense < 31242 | X 314.04
(b) X 1,798.58 | X 1,717.87
Less: Non Operating Income
Interest Income B 216.78 [ X 95.09
(c) b 216.78 | X 95.09
Operating profit before working capital changes d=(atb-c) | X 6,826.78 | X 2,435.95
Working capital changes:
Decrease /(Increase) In Trade Receivables < 6,170.54 | X -1,661.26
Decrease/(Increase) in Loans & advances (Assets) g -12,315.76 | X -7,679.46
Decrease/(Increase) in Inventories £ - g -
Decrease/(Increase) in Other Current Assets B 11.00 | X 11.00
Increase /(Decrease) in Other Long Term Liabilities X - R -
Increase /(Decrease) in Trade Payables £ -3,060.91 | X 2,042.99
Increase /(Decrease) in Other Current Liabilities £ - g -2,137.09
Increase /(Decrease) in Provisions ki 9.74 | X 230.40
(e) b -9,185.39 | X -9,193.42
Cash generated from operations (d+e) £ -2,358.61 | X -6,757.47
Taxes paid X -1,290.90 | X -236.00
Net cash used in operating activities (A) g -3,649.52 | X -6,993.47
B : Cash flows from investing activities:
Fixed asset Purchase B -2,756.60 -782.747
Interest on FD Y 216.78 | X 95.09
Capital Work in Process £ - £ -
Investment R = R =
Net cash Generated from investing activities (B) X -2,539.82 | X -687.66
C : Cash flows from financing activities:
Increase/(Decrease) in borrowing R 6,160.46 | X 7,957.31
Interest Expenses S -312.42 | X -314.04
Issue of Shares S - S -
Net cash generated from financing activities (c) S 5,848.04 | X 7,643.26
D : Net increase in cash and cash equivalents = (A+B+C) D=(A+B+C)| X -341.30 | X -37.86
E : Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period (E) X 890.42 | X 928.29
F: Cash and cash equivalents at end of period = (D+E) (D +E) X 549.12 | X 890.42
NOTES TO ACCOUNTS 19
Notes referred to above and Notes to Accounts attached there to form an integral
part of the Audited Financial Statement
This is the Statement of Assets and Liabilities referred to in our Report of even date.
FOR NAKRANI & CO. i#\ FOR QUALISPACE WEB SERVICES PVT LTD

Chartered Accountants
FRN: 130078W | MRN: 1320

= -\ x| /
— THANE 0 } / Dimple Shah
Bharat S Patel 5\ /&)

// Director
Proprietor DIN: 07788365
Place: THANE PLACE: MUMBAI
Date: 30th May, 2022 Date: 30th May, 2022

UDIN : 22132078ALGLXS2912

() tryq

Gunja Shah
Director
DIN: 07788340
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QUALISPACE WEB SERVICES PVT LTD
NOTES ANNEXED TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT

Note 2 RESERVES AND SURPLUS

(Figures in '000)

Figures as at the end of

Figures as at the end of

Particulars : : : ) :
current reporting period previous reporting Period
2021-22 2020-21
Opening balance X 3,087.02 | X 2,681.90
Add: Profit / (Loss) for the year 4 3,923.95|X 405.12
Less:- Loss Due to Change in Rate of Depriciation | X - X -
as per Company Act 2013
Closing balance X 7,010.97 | X 3,087.02
Total] X 7,010.97 | X 3,087.02
Note 3 SHORT TERM BORROWINGS
Figures as at the end of Figures as at the end of
Particulars current reporting period previous reporting Period
2021-22 2020-21
Loan from Related Parties
Loan From Directors R 3,696.45 |X 3,696.45
Loan From Other Related Parties R 14,634.03 | X 8,473.57
TOTAL |X 18,330.47 | X 12,170.01
Note 5 SHORT TERM PROVISIONS
] Figures as at the end of Figures as at the end of
Particulars . : : ! :
current reporting period previous reporting Period
2021-22 2020-21
(a) Provision for employee benefits
ESI Payable g 387X 2.75
PF Payable R 168.99 | X 146.42
Professional Tax % 0.60 | X -
Salary Payable X 170.77 | X 968.51
(b) Provision - for TAX
Provision for Income Tax(Prior Years) R - 4 -
Provision for Income Tax(Current Years) 4 1,290.90 | X 236.00
TDS Payable g 210.49 X 43.54
(c) Provision - Others z -
GST Payable g 491.50 | X 930.17
Total] X 2,337.12 | X 2,327.39
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QUALISPACE WEB SERVICES PVT LTD
NOTES ANNEXED TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT

Note 7 LONG TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES

(Figures in '000)

Particulars

Figures as at the end
of current reporting

Figures as at the end of
previous reporting

period Period
2021-22 2020-21
Rent Deposit R 50.00 | X 50.00
Total | X 50.00 | X 50.00
Note 9 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Particulars Figures as at the end | Figures as at the end of
of current reporting previous reporting
period Period
2021-22 2020-21
A) Cash In Hand X 0.49|% 4.89
B) Bank Balance X 548.63 | X 885.53
Total| X 549.12 | X 890.42

Note 10 SHORT TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES

Particulars Figures as at the end | Figures as at the end of
of current reporting previous reporting
period Period
2021-22 2020-21
Loans and Advances to Related Parties X 21,796.90 | X 10,928.32
Pre Deposit For GST appeal R 317.38|X -
TDS Receivable R 1,779.16 | X 649.35
Total| X 23,893.43 | X 11,577.67




QUALISPACE WEB SERVICES PVT LTD

NOTES ANNEXED TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT

Note 5 TRADE PAYABLES

Figures For the Current Reporting Period

(Figures in '000)

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Particulars More than 3
Less than 1 Year 1-2 Years 2-3 Years Total
Years
MSME X = X - X . X E X =
Others S - S - i - 3 - R -
Dispute dues-MSME % - < - 3 - b - b -
Dispute dues < - < - B - < - < -
Others X 2,683.76 | X 97.43 X 1137 |X - X 2,792.56
Total S - b - s - s - s 2,792.56
Figures For Previous Reporting Period
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Particulars More than 3
Less than 1 Year 1-2 Years 2-3 Years Total
Years
MSME X - X - X - X - % -
Others % - < - i - < - b -
Dispute dues-MSME < - s - b - < - < -
Dispute dues i - i - B - i - < -
Others X 4,126.67 | X 1,277.67 | X 449.13 | X - X 5,853.47
Total b - S - s - S - s 5,853.47
Note 8 TRADE RECEIVABLES
Figures For the Current Reporting Period
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Particulars Less than 6 6 Months - More than 3
1-2 Years 2-3 Years Total
Months 1Year Years
Undisputed Trade Receivables-
i X 1,948.49 | X 470.17 | X 8437 |X 29.69 | X - 2,532.71
Considered Goods
Undisputed Trade Receivables-
; < - =z - =z N - = - :
Considered Doubtful
DISplfted Trade Receivables- % ) % ) % ) % ) % ) )
Considered Goods
Disputed Trade Receivables-
) % - 1= - = - 1= - 1= - -
Considered Doubtful
Others < - < - b - £ - < - -
Figures For Previous Reporting Period
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Particulars Less than 6 6 Months - More than 3
1-2 Years 2-3 Years Total
Months 1Year Years
Undisputed Trade Recelvables- |, , o000l 3sasas|z 150408 26.59 | < - 8,703.26
Considered Goods
Undisputed Trade Receivables-
; z - = - = - = - = - -
Considered Doubtful
DISplfted Trade Receivables- % ) % ) - ) % ) % ) )
Considered Goods
Disputed Trade Receivables-
) g - = - = - = - = - -
Considered Doubtful
Others G - 5 - X - % - b - -




QUALISPACE WEB SERVICES PVT LTD
NOTES ANNEXED TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT

Note 11 REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS

(Figures in '000)

Figures for the
current reporting

Figures for the
previous reporting

Particulars
period period
2021-22 2020-21
Sale of Services b 51,593.98 | X 31,331.39
Total - Sales g 51,593.98 | X 31,331.39

Note 12 OTHER INCOME

Figures for the

Figures for the

Particulars current reporting previous reporting
period period
2021-22 2020-21
Interest Income R 091X 95.09
Rebate Received X 215.87 | X -
Total| X 216.78 | X 95.09
Note 13 COST OF MATERIALS CONSUMED
Figures for the Figures for the
Paiticulars current reporting | previous reporting
period period
2021-22 2020-21
Purchase of Service B 21,987.62 | X 12,998.39
Software Expenses B - b 76.48
Cost of material consumed| X 21,987.62 | X 13,074.87

Note 14 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES

Particulars Figures for the Figures for the
current reporting | previous reporting
period period
2021-22 2020-21
Salaries and wages X 18,638.29 | X 12,773.47
Director Remuneration R 1,053.18 | X 1,032.48
ES| Employees Contribution B - b -
Staff Welfare < - B -
Bonus R - s -
Total| X 19,691.47 | X 13,805.95

Note 15 FINANCE COST

Figures for the
current reporting

Figures for the
previous reporting

Particulars
period period
2021-22 2020-21
Foreign Exchange Transaction net Gain/Loss 3 118.54 | X 103.37
Bank Charges B 144.13 | X 131.37
Collection Charges B 49.76 | X 79.30
Total| X 312.42 | X 314.04
Note 16 OTHER EXPENSES
Figures for the Figures for the
Particulars current reporting | previous reporting
period period
2021-22 2020-21
Food Expensess B 0.23|X -
Audit Fees b 40.00 | X 25.00
Marketing Expense X 1,497.55 | X 1,045.48
Selling & Distribution Expense B 99.09 | X 11111
Office Expense B 90.36 | X 17111
Rounding off X 0.01|X 0.31
Postage & Courier Expenses B 6.11|X 2.16
Printing & Stationary Expenses b 9.44 | R 11.85
Profession Tax b 250X 2.50
Professional & Legal Charges b 486.06 | X 79.01
Repair & Maintenance Expenses b 31.77 | X 70.46
Misc. Expenditures W/off 1/5th g 11.00 | % 11.00
Interest / Penalties / Late Payment Charges g 376.39 | X 26.63
Sundry Balance W/off < 42.07 | X 57.47
Lease Rent R 395.53 | X 369.67
Travelling Expense S - B 30.88
Total | X 3,088.12 | X 2,014.62
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YOUR ONLINE ALLY
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QUALISPACE WEB SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED Qual |S ace

Domain | Hosting Cloud | Servers

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the period ended 31°t December 2021

BACKGROUND:
Qualispace Web Services Private Limited (the Company) was incorporated on April 24, 2017. The
financial statement prepared for the Company relate to the period from April 1, 2021 to December 31,
2021. The Company provides Other IT Related Business Services and other allied services to domestic/
oversees clients.

Note 19: SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES ADOPTED BY THE COMPANY:

a. Basis of preparation of financial statements:
The financial statements are prepared in accordance with Indian Generally Accepted
Accounting Principles (“GAAP”) under the historical cost convention on the accrual basis of
accounting and comply in all the material aspects with the accounting standards notified under
section 133 [The Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, as amended] and other provisions of the
new Companies Act, 2013, as applicable to the Company.

b. Operating Cycle:
The Company is primarily engaged in the business of Information Technology The Company has
considered its operating cycle as 12 months and all assets and liabilities have been classified as
current or non-current as per the criteria set out in the Revised Schedule Ill to the new
Companies Act, 2013.

G Use of estimates:
The preparation of financial statements requires the management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and the disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported
amounts of revenues and expenses during the period reported. Actual results could differ from
those estimates. Any revision to accounting estimates is recognized prospectively in the current
and future periods.

d. Fixed Assets:
Fixed assets are stated at their original cost of acquisition or construction less accumulated
depreciation. Cost includes taxes, duties, freight and other incidental expenses related to
acquisition. Fixed Assets sold during the year and profit/ (loss) arising on sale is recognized and
accounted for in the year of sale. During this year some of assets have reinstated at 5% of its
residual value as per Scheduled Il of the new Companies Act, 2013.

e. Depreciation/ Amortization:
Depreciation/amortization on fixed assets is provided as per Schedule Il to the Companies Act,
2013 which requires depreciating the asset over its useful life as prescribed in section 123 read
with Schedule Il — Part C of the new Companies Act, 2013.

Individual assets booked as per their book value and depreciated as per useful life of the assets.
Assets having costing ¥ 10,000 or less have been depreciated at a computed rate as per method
laid under the act in the year of purchase.
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QUALISPACE WEB SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED uual is ace

Domain | Hosting Ml Cloud | Servers

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the period ended 31°t December 2021

i,

Impairment:

The carrying amounts of assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date to determine if there is
any indication of impairment based on internal/external factors. An impairment loss is
recognized wherever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is the greater of the asset’s net selling price and value in use. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value at the
weighted average cost of capital.

Reversal of impairment loss is recognized immediately as income in the statement of profit and
loss.

During the year impairment loss of T NIL is recognized with following break-up and taken into
books of account.

Sr. | Particulars Amountin¥
1. Computers NIL
Total NIL

Leases:

Leases where the lessor effectively retains substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership
of the leased term, are classified as operating leases. Operating lease payments are recognized
as an expense in the statement of Profit and Loss on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Revenue Recognition:
Revenue from contracts priced on a time and material basis are recognized when services are
rendered and related costs are incurred.

Revenue from software implementation services is recognized on the achievement of the
milestones or performance of the specified tasks/ activities over the related period, as per the

terms of the specific contract.
Revenue from deputation services is recognized on accrual basis as per the terms of contract.

Foreign Currency Transactions:

(i) Initial Recognition
Foreign currency transactions are recorded in the reporting currency, by applying to the
foreign currency amount the exchange rate between the reporting currency and the
foreign currency at the date of the transaction.

(ii) Conversion
Foreign currency monetary items are reported using the closing rate. Non-monetary
items which are carried in terms of historical cost denominated in a foreign currency are
reported using the exchange rate at the date of the transacti/on
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QUALISPACE WEB SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED uual iSpace

Domain | Hosting Cloud | Servers

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the period ended 31°* December 2021

(iii) Exchange Differences
Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items or on reporting
company's monetary items at rates different from those at which they were initially
recorded during the year, or reported in previous financial statements, are recognized as
income or as expenses in the year in which they arise.

j. Taxation:

Income-tax expense comprises Current tax and Deferred tax charge or credit.

(i)  Provision for current tax is made on the assessable income at the tax rate
applicable to the relevant assessment year. Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT)
eligible for set off in subsequent years, (as per tax laws) is recognized as an asset
by way of credit to the statement of Profit and Loss only if there is convincing
evidence of its realisation. At each balance sheet date, the carrying amount of
MAT Credit Entitlement receivable is reviewed to reassure realisation.

(i)  The Deferred tax Asset and Deferred tax Liability is calculated by applying tax rate
and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the Balance
Sheet date. Deferred tax Assets arising mainly on account of brought forward
losses and unabsorbed depreciation under tax laws, are recognized, only if there
is a virtual certainty of its realisation, supported by convincing evidence. Deferred
tax Assets on account of other timing differences are recognized, only to the
extent there is a reasonable certainty of its realisation. At each Balance Sheet
date, the carrying amount of Deferred tax Assets are reviewed to reassure
realisation.

k. Employee Benefits :
a) Short Term Employee Benefits:
All employee benefits payable within twelve months of rendering the service are
recognized in the period in which the employee renders the related service.

b) Post-Employment Benefits:
Retirement benefits to employees comprise of Provident Fund contributions. Contribution
to defined contribution retirement benefit schemes are recognized as an expense when
employees have rendered services entitling them to contributions.

I.  Earnings Per Share:
Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period
attributable to equity shareholders (after deducting preference dividends and attributable
taxes) by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period.

m. Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets:
Provisions involving a substantial degree of estimation in measurement are recognized when
there is a present obligation as a result of past events and it is probable that there will be an
outflow of resources. Contingent Liabilities are not recogni t are disclosed in the Financial

MUMBAI
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Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the period ended 31°* December 2021

20

21.

22,

23.

24.

Cash and Cash Equivalents:

The Company considers all highly liquid financial instruments, which are readily convertible into
cash and have original maturities of three months or less from the date of purchase, to be cash
equivalents.

CONTINGENT LIABILITY:
Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debt ¥ Nil (previous year Rs. Nil)

OPERATING LEASES:
The Company do not have any lease obligation during the period under audit.

Based on information’s available with the Company, there are no suppliers registered as micro,
small or medium enterprise under “The Micro, Small and Medium Enterprise Development Act,
2006” as at December 31, 2021 and hence disclosure, if any, relating to amounts unpaid as at
the year end and together with interest paid/payable as required under the said Act have not
been given.

DEFERRED TAX:
(Amount inX)
Sr. i As at As at
Particulars
No. 31/12/2021 | 31/03/2021
(i) | Deferred tax Liability on account of :
Depreciation 1,69,511 70,041
(ii) | Deferred tax asset on account of :
a) Unabsorbed Depreciation Nil Nil
b) Employee Benefits - leave Nil Nil
Encashment & Gratuity
c) On Account of disallowances Nil Nil
d) Carried Forward Losses Nil Nil
Deferred Tax Asset/(Liability) Nil Nil
Less: Reversal During the year Nil Nil
TOTAL 1,69,511 70,041
In consideration of prudence, the deferred tax asset has not been recognized in the accounts
and the same would be considered at an appropriate time keeping in view the availability of
sufficient taxable income against which such deferred tax asset can be realized.
The disclosure required under Accounting Standard 15 employee Benefit notified in the

Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules 2006, is given below:
During the period under audit, the Company do not have any obligation towards Gratuity, Leave
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Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the period ended 31t December 2021

25. Particulars of Un-hedged foreign Currency Exposure as the Balance Sheet date:
During period under audit, the company does not have any un-hedged foreign currency

exposure as on balance sheet date.

26. Segment Reporting:

The risk-return profile of the Company’s business is determined predominantly by the nature
of its services. Accordingly, the business segment constitutes the primary segment for

disclosure of segment information.

Company is, at present, primarily engaged in a single business segment of Information

Technology Company and operates only in a single geographical segment i.e. India.

Accordingly, no disclosures are made in terms of Accounting Standard AS — 17 relating to
“Segment Reporting”.

27. Related Party Transaction
Disclosure of transaction with Related Parties, as required by Accounting standard AS - 18
relating to Related Party Disclosure’ are given here under. Related parties as defined under

Clause 3 of the accounting Standard AS — 18 have been identified based on Representations

made by and information available with the Company.

[Note: Related Party relationships as identified by the Company have been relied upon by the

Auditors.]
List of related parties with whom transactions were carried out during the year and description of
relationship:
(Amount in¥)
Particulars Upto 31+ Dec. 2021 FY 2020-21
Net-off Amount
i 0/s amounts Net-off
of Transactions Lo 0/s amounts
carried in the Amount of

Name of the Related Party Nature of for carried in the
: . ) Balance Sheet Transactions
& Nature of Relationship | Transaction FY 2021-22 V2021222 for Balance Sheet
(Upto Dec. (Upto Dec. 2021 FY 2020-21 FY 2020-21
2021) pro Dec. )
Key Managerial Personnel
& their Relatives:
Managerial
Remuneratio 7,89,930 Nil 5,16,240 Nil
Mrs. Dimple Shah n
Unsecured i
Nil 4,68,979 5,93,979 4,68,979
Loan
Managerial
Remuneratio Nil Nil 5,16,240 Nil
Mrs. Gunja Shah n
Unsecured X
Nil (1,84,590) 1,84,590 (1,84,590)
Loan
Mr. Ashish Shah Unsecured Z \,‘;12 9’3 718) (2,98,709) (3,02,650)
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Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the period ended 315t December 2021

Loan
Unsecured
. (12,64,750) (16,37,209) | (2,69,527) (3,72,459)
Mr. Hirenkumar Shah Loan
Sales 0 0 5,874 6,170
Associate Enterprise &
Sister Concern:
Netztrack Solutions t’:::cure‘j Nil | (39,80,836) Nil | (39,80,836)
Unsecured
. 73,96,208 (2,71,184) 2,51,038 | (76,67,392)
Trunkoz Technologies Pvt Loan
Ltd Purchases 8,22,207 (19,69,921) | 11,47,714 | (11,47,714)
Rent 3,00,825 (7,21,607) 4,07,706 (4,20,782)
Unsecured .
PayNX Technologies Pvt Loan Nil (1,31,068) 7,587 (1,31,068)
ki Sales 45,439 Nil 45,439 1,07,266
Advances 16,03,221 41,87,835 | 19,80,010 25,84,614
OwnRegistrar Inc Sales Nil 2,51,460 Nil 2,71,600
Purchases 46,81,096 (37,67,292) Nil (3,22,657)
PayExecute Inc Advances Nil 16,873 Nil 16,873
Qualispace Inc Advances 35,02,582 1,71,26,435 | 49,92,850 | 1,36,23,854

28. Cash Flow Statement as required in terms of Accounting Standard “AS-3 (Revised) Cash Flow
Statements” is applicable and attached herewith with Financial Statements.

29. As the Company is not a manufacturing company, the information required under Clause3 (ii)
(a) and Clause 4C of Part Il of the Companies Act, 1956 has not been given.

30. The balances of sundry debtors, sundry creditors, loans and advances are subject to
reconciliation and confirmation and are as per books of account only. In the opinion of the
management, the reconciliation, if any, will not materially affect the loss of the Company for

the year.

31. In the opinion of the Management, all the current assets, loans and advances have a value on

realization in the ordinary course of business equal to the amount at which they are stated and

all provisions for liabilities are adequate and are not less than the amount considered

necessary.

32. Expenditure in foreign currency —¥ 72,30,666 (P.Y. ¥ 31,30,236)

33. Earning in Foreign Currency (On Cash Basis) —X 15,297/-

(As per Receipt & Payment A/c from Tally)

(Amount in <)

Particulars

FY 2021-22
(Upto Dec. 2021)

Receipt from Export against Invoice

Advance against Export Services
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Exchange Gain/(Loss) on remittance -
Total Earning in Foreign Currency
(On Cash Basis)

15,297

34, Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and outstanding
net of advances — ¥ Nil (P.Y. Nil)

35. On account of application of Schedule Il as per the new Companies Act, 2013 for the
preparation of financial statements, the disclosures, classification and presentation made in this
financial statement have been significantly impacted / changed. Previous year’s figures have
been regrouped / reclassified wherever necessary to correspond with the current year’s

classification / disclosure.

FOR QUALISPACE WEB SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED

Syt
DIMPLE SHAH
Director
DIN: 07788365
PLACE: MUMBAI
DATE: 30th May, 2022




A | | NAKRANI & CO.

Chartered Accountant
INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To
The Members of QUALISPACE WEB SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED

Report on the audit of the financial statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of QUALISPACE WEB SERVICES PRIVATE
LIMITED (“the Company”), which comprise the balance sheet as at March 31, 2021, and the
Statement of Profit and Loss and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information. -

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (‘Act’) in
the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2021, its profit for
the year ended on that date.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards on auditing specified under section 143
(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in
the auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the code of ethics issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit
of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the rules thereunder, and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the code of
ethics.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in
our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and
we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Reporting of key audit matters as per SA 701, Key Audit Matters are not applicable to the Company
as it is an unlisted company.

Information other than the financial statements and auditors’ report thereon

The Company’s board of directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the Board’s Report including Annexures to
Board’s Report, Business Responsibility Report but does not include the financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.




In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the standalone financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management’s responsibility for the financial statements

The Company’s board of directors are responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act
with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the
financial position, financial performance of the Company in accordance with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India, including the accounting standards specified under section
133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the financial statement that give a true and fair view and are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the
Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The board of directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting
process.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not 8
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with 5As will always detect a material
misttatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Companies Act, 2013, we
are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal
financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls




Fvaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to
cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation. .

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or in
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the
financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors
in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (i) to
evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit,

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards. From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these
matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter
or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated
in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

The provisions of the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 is not
applicable to the Company since

(a) It is not a subsidiary or holding company of a public company;

(b) Its paid-up capital and reserves and surplus are not more than Rs.1 Crores as at the balance sheet
date;

(c) Its total borrowings from banks and financial institutions are not more than Rs.1 Crores at any
time during the year; and

(d) Its turnover for the year is not more than Rs.10 Crores during the year.

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:




(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far
as it appears from our examination of those books;

{c) The balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss, dealt with by this report are in agreement
with the books of account;

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the accounting standards specified
under section 133 of the Act, read with rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014;

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2021
taken on record by the board of directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31,2021
from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

(f) Since the Company’s turnover as per last audited financialstatements is less than Rs.50 Crores
and its borrowings from banks and financial institutions at any time during the year is less than Rs.25
Crores, the Company is exempted from getting an audit opinion with respect to the adequacy of the
internal financial controls over financial reporting of the company and the operating effectiveness of
such controls vide notification dated June 13, 2017; and

(g} The Company being a private limited company, the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s
Report in accordance with the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended, in respect of
whether the remuneration paid by the Company to its directors during the year is in accordance
with the provisions of section 197 of the Act is not applicable; and

(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule
11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us;

a. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position;

b. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there
were any material foreseeable losses; and

¢ There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor
Fducation and Protection Fund by the Company.

=

For M/s. Nakrani& Co.
Chartered Accountant
Firm Registration No.130078W

gg\lau&w\é

Bharat Patel

Proprietor

Membership No. 132078
Place: THANE :
Date: 08" November 2021



QUALISPACE WEB SERVICES PVT LTD
602, AVIOR, NIRMAL GALAXY,L.B.S. MARG, OPP. JOHNSON & JOHNSON, MULUND (W) - 400080.
Corporate Identity Number : U93000MH2017PTC294200
AUDITED STATEMENT OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES AS ON 31ST MARCH, 2021

. Amount As At Amount As At 31st
hartionlars Note No.| 55t Mar. 2021 Mar. 2020
I. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
(1) Shareholder's Funds
(a) Share Capital 1 1,00,000 1,00,000
(b) Reserves and Surplus 2 30,87,018 26,81,901
(2) Share Application Money Pending Allotment
(3) Non-Current Liabilities
(a) Long-Term Borrowings 3 - -
(b) Other Long Term Liabilities - -
(c) Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net) 70,041 75,697
(4) Current Liabilities
(a) Short-Term Borrowings 4 1,21,70,015 42,12,708
(b) Trade Payables 5 58,53,471 38,10,484
(c) Other Current Liabilities 6 11,22,874 32,59,965
(d) Short-Term Provisions i 12,04,511 7,96,403
Total Equity & Liabilities 2,36,07,930 1,49,37,158
1I.LASSETS
(1) Non-Current Assets
(a) Fixed Assets 8
(i) Gross Block 61,13,910 53,31,163
(ii) Depreciation 37,38,332 23,34,502
(iii) Net Block 23,75,578 29,96,661
(b) Non-Current Investments - -
(c) Deferred Tax Assets (Net) - -
(d) Long Term Loans And Advances 9 50,000 50,000
(2) Current Assets
(a) Inventories
(b) Trade receivables 10 87,03,257 70,41,996
(c) Cash and Cash Equivalents 11 8,90,424 9,28,287
(d) Short-Term Loans And Advances 12 1,15,77,670 38,98,214
(e) Other Current Assets 11,000 22,000
Total Assets 2,36,07,930 1,49,37,158
NOTES TO ACCOUNTS 19 = 2

Notes referred to above and Notes to Accounts attached there to form an integral part of the Audited Financial Statement
This is the Statement of Assets and Liabilities referred to in our Report of even date.

NAKRANI & CO. FOR QUALISPACE WEB SERVICES PVT LTD

B )
Dimple Shah Gunja Shah
4 Director Director
Membership No==¥ B N DIN: 07788365 DIN: 07788340
\‘_,/’

PLACE: THANE PLACE: MUMBAI
DATED: 08.11.2021 DATED: 08.11.2021




QUALISPACE WEB SERVICES PVT LTD
602, AVIOR, NIRMAL GALAXY,L.B.S. MARG, OPP. JOHNSON & JOHNSON, MULUND (W) - 400080.
Corporate Identity Number : U93000MH2017PTC294200
AUDITED STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE PERIOD ENDED ON 31ST MARCH,2021

Particul Note N Amount As At 31st | Amount As At 31st
e e Mar. 2021 Mar. 2020
Revenue:
Revenue From Operations ( Net of Taxes ) 13 3,13,31,395 3,79,73,775
Income From Non-Operation ( Net of Taxes ) 14 95,090 18,340
Total Revenue 3,14,26,485 3,79,92,115
Expenses:
Direct Service Expense 15 1,30,74,870 1,48,99,501
Employment Benefit Cost 16 1,38,05,950 1,42,55,173
Finance Cost 17 3,14,042 6,78,979
Other Expenses 18 20,14,621 43,48,939
Depreciation & Amortisation 8 14,03,830 13,48,225
Total Expenses 3,06,13,313 3,55,30,818
Profit Before Tax - PBT 8,13,171 24,61,297
Tax expense:
(1) Income Tax Provision
Current Tax 2,36,000 6,08,564
Excess / Short Provision 177,710 -
(2) Deferred tax - 5,656 4,952
Profit/(Loss) for the period After Tax- PAT 4,05,117 18,47,781
No. of Shares 10,000 10,000
Earning per Equity Share:
(1) Basic 40.51 184.78
(2) Diluted 40.51 184.78
NOTES TO ACCOUNTS 19

Notes referred to above and Notes to Accounts attached there to form an integral part of the Audited Financial Statement

This is the Statement of Profit & Loss referred to in our Report of even date.

NAKRANI & CO.

FOR QUALISPACE WEB SERVICES PVT LTD

/,.:—T"_\.
0 B SER)
CHARTERE ,;»‘TJ/\Y/’"\@Q‘ .
FIRM REGISTRA ¥ 2\ g
- 2\ « Crums

Bharat S %;, Dimple Shah Gunja Shah
Proprietor %’95 Director Director
Membership --.;’_r_l_',;r DIN: 07788365 DIN: 07788340
PLACE: THANE PLACE: MUMBAI ‘

DATED: 08.11.2021

DATED: 08.11.2021




QUALISPACE WEB SERVICES PVT LTD
602, AVIOR, NIRMAL GALAXY,L.B.S. MARG, OPP. JOHNSON & JOHNSON, MULUND (W) - 400080.
Corporate Identity Number : U93000MH2017PTC294200
AUDITED CASH FLOW STATEMENT AS ON 31ST MARCH, 2021

Amount As At [ Amount As At

Farticdlars Note No. | 51t Mar. 2021 | 315t Mar. 2020

A : Cash flows from operating activities:

Profit before taxation (a) 8,13,171 24,61,297

Add: Non Operating Expense

Depreciation 14,03,830 13,48,225

Capital Work in Process - -

Interest Expense 3,14,042 6,78,979
(b) 17,17,872 20,27,204

Less: Non Operating Income

Interest Income 95,090 18,340
(c) 95,090 18,340

Operating profit before working capital changes d=(at+b-c) 24,35,953 44,70,161

Working capital changes:

Decrease /(Increase) In Trade Receivables - 16,61,261 |- 28,39,867
Decrease/(Increase) in Loans & advances (Assets) - 76,79,457 20,60,733
Decrease/(Increase) in Inventories - -
Decrease/(Increase) in Other Current Assets 11,000 11,000
Increase /(Decrease) in Other Long Term Liabilities - -
Increase /(Decrease) in Trade Payables 20,42,987 |- 70,81,830
Increase /(Decrease) in Other Current Liabilities - 21,37,091 26,55,677
Increase /(Decrease) in Provisions 2,30,398 4,79,790
(e) - 91,93,423 |- 47,14,496
Cash generated from operations (d+e) - 67,57,470 |- 2,44,335
Taxes paid - 2,36,000 |- 6,08,564
Net cash used in operating activities (A) - 69,93,470 |- 8,52,899

B : Cash flows from investing activities:

Fixed asset Purchase - 7,82,747 |- 17,28,150
Interest on FD 95,090 18,340
Capital Work in Process - -
Invertment - -
Net cash Generated from investing activities (B) - 6,87,657 |- 17,09,810

C : Cash flows from financing activities:

Increase/(Decrease) in borrowing 79,57,306 35,83,234
Interest Expenses A - 3,14,042 |- 6,78,979
Issue of Shares - -
Net cash generated from financing activities (C) 76,43,264 29,04,255
D : Net increase in cash and cash equivalents = (A+B+C) D=(A+B+C) |- 37,863 3,41,546
E : Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period (E) 9,28,287 5,86,741
F: Cash and cash equivalents at end of period = (D+E) (D+E) 8,90,424 9,28,287
NOTES TO ACCOUNTS 19

Notes referred to above and Notes to Accounts attached there to form an integral

Y
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QUALISPACE WEB SERVICES PVT LTD
Notes Forming Integral Part of the Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2021
Note 1 : Share Capital
Patticiilars Amount As At 31st | Amount As At 31st
Mar. 2021 Mar. 2020
AUTHORIZED CAPITAL
10,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each. 1,00,000 1,00,000
1,00,000 1,00,000
ISSUED , SUBSCRIBED & PAID UP CAPITAL
To the Subscribers of the Memorandum
Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each fully paid up. 1,00,000 1,00,000
Total Value in INR 1,00,000 1,00,000
Note 2 : Reserve & Surplus
Particulars Amount As At 31st | Amount As At 31st
Mar. 2021 Mar. 2020
(a) Suplus from Profit & Loss Account
Opening Balances 26,81,901 8,34,120
Add: Profit/(Loss) for the period 4,05,117 18,47,781
Total Value in INR 30,87,018 26,81,901
Note 3 : Long Term Borrowing
Particulars Amount As At 31st [ Amount As At 31st
Mar. 2021 Mar. 2020
Secured
(a) Loans repayable on demand
from banks (Secured By Office Premises) . -
Unsecured
from banks 2 :
Total Value in INR (A+B) - -
Note 4 : Short Term Borrowing
" Amount As At 31st [ Amount As At 31st
Particulars
Mar. 2021 Mar. 2020
Secured
(a) Loans repayable on demand
from banks ((Secured By Car)
Unsecured
Credit Card Payable - -
Unsecured
(a) Loans repayable on demand-from Banks - -
(b) Loan from Related Parties
Loan From Directors 36,96,447 1,25,000
Loan From Other Related Parties 84,73,568 40,87,708
Total Value in INR (A+B) 1,21,70,015 42,12,708
Note 5 : Trades Payable
Particulars Amount As At 31st | Amount As At 31st
Mar. 2021 Mar. 2020
Sundry Creditors 58,53,471 38,10,484
Total Value in INR 58,53,471 38,10,484
Note 6 : Other Current Liabilities
Particul Amount As At 31st | Amount As At 31st
articulars Mar. 2021 Mar. 2020
(a) Other Payables
Statutory Remittance
GST Payable 9,30,165 30,81,744
TDS Payable 43,544 72,047
Profession Tax - 15,587
Provident Fund Payable 1,46,418 1,21,761
ESIC payable 2,747 -
Others:
Income Received in Advance -
Security Deposits Accepted - -
Others - -
Total Value in INR 11,22,874 32,59,965
Note 7 : Short Term Provisions
particul Amount As At 31st [ Amount As At 31st
X articyars Mar. 2020 Mar. 2020
Provision for Income Tax 2,36,000 7,71,329
Other Provisions 9,68,511 25,074
Total Value in INR 12,04,511 7,96,403
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Notes Forming Integral Part of the Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2021

QUALISPACE WEB SERVICES PVT LTD

Note 9: Long Term Loans and Advances
el Amount As At 31st|Amount As At 31st
EREISIALS Mar. 2021 Mar. 2020
Deposits
1 |Deposits with MSEB = _
2 |Telephone Deposit - -
3 |Rent Deposit -Trunkoz 50,000 50,000
Total Value in INR 50,000 50,000
Note 10 : Trade Recievables
. Amount As At 31st|Amount As At 31st
Particulars
Mar. 2021 Mar. 2020
1 |Trade Receivables,Outstanding for Less than Six Months
Related Party - -
Others 87,03,257 70,41,996
2 |Trade Receivables,Outstanding for More than Six Months
Related Party -
Others - -
Total Value in INR 87,03,257 70,41,996
Note 11 : Cash & Cash Equivalent
Partical Amount As At Amount As At
PR EIE 31st Mar. 2021 | 31st Mar. 2020
1 |Cash-in-Hand 4,890 49,534
2 |Bank Balances 8,85,534 1,28,753
3 |Bank Deposits with more than 12 months maturity - 7,50,000
Total Value in INR 8,90,424 9,28,287
Note 12 : Short Terms Loans and Advances
particol Amount As At Amount As At
AL 31st Mar. 2021 | 31st Mar. 2020
1 |Loans and Advances to Related Parties 1,09,28,323 11,94,598
2 |Loan to Directors -
3 |Other Receivable
TDS Receivable 6,49,347 27,03,616
Other Advance with Revenue Authorities - -
Advance with Staff - -
Others - -
Total Value in INR e 1,15,77,670 38,98,214




QUALISPACE WEB SERVICES PVT LTD

Notes Forming Part of the Profit & Loss Accounts as at 31st March, 2021

Note 13 : Revenue From Operations
: Amount As At Amount As At
Particulars
31st Mar. 2021 31st Mar: 2020
1 |Sale of Services 3,13,31,395 3,79,73,775
Total Value in INR 3,13,31,395 3,79,73,775
Note 14 : Income From Non Operation
. Amount As At Amount As At
Particulars
31st Mar. 2021 31st Mar. 2020
1 |Other non Operating Income 95,090 18,340
2 |Foreign Exchange Gain - -
Total Value in INR 95,090 18,340
Note 15 : Direct Service Expenses
. Amount As At Amount As At
Particulars
31st Mar. 2021 31st Mar. 2020
1 |Purchases of Services 1,29,98,390 1,48,37,527
2 [Software Expenses 76,480 61,974
3 |Outsourcing Expenses - -
Total Value in INR 1,30,74,870 1,48,99,501
Note : 16 Employement Benefit Cost
. Amount As At Amount As At
Particulars
- 31st Mar. 2021 31st Mar. 2020
’ 1 |Salaries and Incentives 1,27,73,470 1,32,22,693
2 |Director Remuneration 10,32,480 10,32,480
Total Value in INR 1,38,05,950 1,42,55,173
Note 17 : Finance Cost
Particul Amount As At Amount As At
articutars 31st Mar. 2021 | 31stMar. 2020
1 |interest Expense - -
2 |Foreign Exchange Transaction net Gain/Loss 1,03,367 92,375
3 |Bank Charges 1,31,374 4,43,227
4 |Collection Charges 79,300 1,43,378
Total Value in INR 3,14,042 6,78,979
Note 18 : Other Expenses
Paitical Amount As At Amount As At
PIER S 31st Mar. 2021 | 31stMar. 2020
1 |Food Expensess - 30,928
2 |Audit Fees 25,000 -
3 |Exhibition Expense - -
4 |Marketing Expense 10,45,481 10,85,362
5 |Selling & Distribution Expense 1,11,105 6,48,832
6 |Office Expense 1,71,108 7,01,965
7 |Rounding off 311 6
8 |Postage & Courier Expenses 2,164 9,454
9 [Printing & Stationary Expenses 11,845 46,097
10 |Profession Tax 2,500 2,500
11 |Professional & Legal Charges 79,010 88,500
12 |Repair & Maintenance Expenses 70,458 2,76,331
13 [Misc. Expenditures W/off 1/5th 11,000 11,000
14 linterest / Penalties / Late Payment Charges 26,630 1,99,661
15 |Insurance Expenses - 8,520
16 |Sundry Balance W/off 57,467 98,518
17 |Lease Rent 3,69,667 3,45,480
18 |Travelling Expense 30,876 7,95,797
Total Value in INR 20,14,621 43,48,939
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Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the period ended 31°* March 2021

BACKGROUND:

Qualispace Web Services Private Limited (the Company) was incorporated on April 24, 2017. This is the
fourth financial statement prepared for the Company and they relate to the period from April 1, 2020
to March 31, 2021. The Company provides Other IT Related Business Services and other allied services
to domestic/ oversees clients.

Note 19: SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES ADOPTED BY THE COMPANY:

a. Basis of preparation of financial statements:
The financial statements are prepared in accordance with Indian Generally Accepted
Accounting Principles (“GAAP”) under the historical cost convention on the accrual basis of
accounting and comply in all the material aspects with the accounting standards notified under
section 133 [The Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, as amended] and other provisions of the
new Companies Act, 2013, as applicable to the Company.

b. Operating Cycle:
The Company is primarily engaged in the business of Information Technology The Company has
considered its operating cycle as 12 months and all assets and liabilities have been classified as
current or non-current as per the criteria set out in the Revised Schedule Il to the new
Companies Act, 2013.

c. Use of estimates:
The preparation of financial statements requires the management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and the disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported
amounts of revenues and expenses during the period reported. Actual results could differ from
those estimates. Any revision to accounting estimates is recognized prospectively in the current
and future periods.

d. Fixed Assets:
Fixed assets are stated at their original cost of acquisition or construction less accumulated
depreciation. Cost includes taxes, duties, freight and other incidental expenses related to
acquisition. Fixed Assets sold during the year and profit/ (loss) arising on sale is recognized and
accounted for in the year of sale. During this year some of assets have reinstated at 5% of its
residual value as per Scheduled Il of the new Companies Act, 2013.

e. Depreciation/ Amortization:
Depreciation/amortization on fixed assets is provided as per Schedule Il to the Companies Act,
2013 which requires depreciating the asset over its useful life as prescribed in section 123 read
with Schedule Il — Part C of the new Companies Act, 2013.

Individual assets booked as per their book value and deprecfated as- per useful life of the assets.
Assets having costing ¥ 10,000 or less have been deprecnated ata combuted rate as per method
laid under the act in the year of purchase. 3 \BAY i
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Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the period ended 315t March 2021

f. Impairment:
The carrying amounts of assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date to determine if there is
any indication of impairment based on internal/external factors. An impairment loss is
recognized wherever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is the greater of the asset’s net selling price and value in use. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value at the
weighted average cost of capital.

Reversal of impairment loss is recognized immediately as income in the statement of profit and
loss.

During the year impairment loss of X NIL is recognized with following break-up and taken into
books of account.

Sr. | Particulars Amount in¥
1. Computers NIL
Total NIL

g. Leases:
Leases where the lessor effectively retains substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership
of the leased term, are classified as operating leases. Operating lease payments are recognized
as an expense in the statement of Profit and Loss on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

h. Revenue Recognition:
Revenue from contracts priced on a time and material basis are recognized when services are
rendered and related costs are incurred.

Revenue from software implementation services is recognized on the achievement of the
milestones or performance of the specified tasks/ activities over the related period, as per the
terms of the specific contract.

Revenue from deputation services is recognized on accrual basis as per the terms of contract.

i Foreign Currency Transactions:
(i) Initial Recognition
Foreign currency transactions are recorded in the reporting currency, by applying to the
foreign currency amount the exchange rate between the reporting currency and the
foreign currency at the date of the transaction.

(ii) Conversion
Foreign currency monetary items are reported using the closing rate. Non-monetary
items which are carried in terms of historical cost denominated-in a foreign.currency are

reported using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction.
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Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the period ended 315t March 2021

(i) Exchange Differences
Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items or on reporting
company's monetary items at rates different from those at which they were initially
recorded during the year, or reported in previous financial statements, are recognized as
income or as expenses in the year in which they arise.

j. Taxation:

Income-tax expense comprises Current tax and Deferred tax charge or credit.

(i) Provision for current tax is made on the assessable income at the tax rate
applicable to the relevant assessment year. Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT)
eligible for set off in subsequent years, (as per tax laws) is recognized as an asset
by way of credit to the statement of Profit and Loss only if there is convincing
evidence of its realisation. At each balance sheet date, the carrying amount of
MAT Credit Entitlement receivable is reviewed to reassure realisation.

(i) The Deferred tax Asset and Deferred tax Liability is calculated by applying tax rate
and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the Balance
Sheet date. Deferred tax Assets arising mainly on account of brought forward
losses and unabsorbed depreciation under tax laws, are recognized, only if there
is a virtual certainty of its realisation, supported by convincing evidence. Deferred
tax Assets on account of other timing differences are recognized, only to the
extent there is a reasonable certainty of its realisation. At each Balance Sheet
date, the carrying amount of Deferred tax Assets are reviewed to reassure
realisation.

k. Employee Benefits :
a) Short Term Employee Benefits:
All employee benefits payable within twelve months of rendering the service are
recognized in the period in which the employee renders the related service.

b) Post-Employment Benefits:
Retirement benefits to employees comprise of Provident Fund contributions. Contribution
to defined contribution retirement benefit schemes are recognized as an expense when
employees have rendered services entitling them to contributions.

I.  Earnings Per Share:
Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period
attributable to equity shareholders (after deducting preference dividends and attributable
taxes) by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period.

m. Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets:
Provisions involving a substantial degree of estimation in measurement are recognized when
there is a present obligation as a result of past events and it is probable that there v‘vi,vl‘l' be an
outflow of resources. Contingent Liabilities are not recognized but aré disclosed in the Fihangial
Statements. Contingent Assets are neither recognized nor disclosed in the Financial St’aten}nehfts.

>
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Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the period ended 31 March 2021

20.

21.

22.

23.

24,

Cash and Cash Equivalents:

The Company considers all highly liquid financial instruments, which are readily convertible into
cash and have original maturities of three months or less from the date of purchase, to be cash
equivalents.

CONTINGENT LIABILITY:
Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debt ¥ Nil (previous year Rs. Nil)

OPERATING LEASES:
The Company do not have any lease obligation during the period under audit.

Based on information’s available with the Company, there are no suppliers registered as micro,
small or medium enterprise under “The Micro, Small and Medium Enterprise Development Act,
2006” as at March 31, 2020 and hence disclosure, if any, relating to amounts unpaid as at the
year end and together with interest paid/payable as required under the said Act have not been
given.

DEFERRED TAX:
(Amount in <)
sr. _ As at Asat
Particulars
No. 31/03/2021 | 31/03/2020
(i) | Deferred tax Liability on account of :
Depreciation 70,041 75,697
(ii) | Deferred tax asset on account of :
a) Unabsorbed Depreciation Nil Nil
b) Employee Benefits - leave Nil Nil
Encashment & Gratuity
c) On Account of disallowances Nil Nil
d) Carried Forward Losses Nil Nil
Deferred Tax Asset/(Liability) Nil Nil
Less: Reversal During the year Nil Nil
TOTAL 70,041 75,697

In consideration of prudence, the deferred tax asset has not been recognized in the accounts
and the same would be considered at an appropriate time keeping in view the availability of

sufficient taxable income against which such deferred tax asset can be realized.

The disclosure required under Accounting Standard 15 employee Benefit notified in the
Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules 2006, is given below:

During the period under audit, the Company do not have any obligation t'o,wa_,rds Gratuity, Leave
Encashment or any other defined benefit under AS-15. '

7
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Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the period ended 315 March 2021

25. Particulars of Un-hedged foreign Currency Exposure as the Balance Sheet date:
During period under audit, the company does not have any un-hedged foreign currency

exposure as on balance sheet date.

26. Segment Reporting:

The risk-return profile of the Company’s business is determined predominantly by the nature

of its services. Accordingly, the business segment constitutes the primary segment for

disclosure of segment information.

Company is, at present, primarily engaged in a single business segment of Information

Technology Company and operates only in a single geographical segment i.e. India.

Accordingly, no disclosures are made in terms of Accounting Standard AS — 17 relating to

“Segment Reporting”.

27. Related Party Transaction
Disclosure of transaction with Related Parties, as required by Accounting standard AS — 18

relating to Related Party Disclosure’ are given here under. Related parties as defined under

Clause 3 of the accounting Standard AS — 18 have been identified based on Representations
made by and information available with the Company.

[Note: Related Party relationships as identified by the Company have been relied upon by the

Auditors.]

List of related parties with whom transactions were carried out during the year and description of

relationship:

(Amount in %)

Particulars FY 2020-21 FY 2019-20
O/s amounts ; 0/s -
. . \
‘ carried in | amounts
Name of the Related Party Nature of Transactio | the Balance | Transactio | carried in
| I |
& Nature of Relationshi Transaction n Value nValue | ‘
8 Sheet '~ the Balance |
Sheet
Key Managerial Personnel ! ‘
& their Relatives: : j
Managerial . ; .
. 5,16,240 Nil 5,16,240 | Nil
. Remuneration ‘
Mrs. Dimple Shah 1 —
Unsecured o ‘
5,93,979 4,68,979 Nil - (1,25,000)
Loan ‘
Managerial . ; .
) 5,16,240 Nil 5,16,240 | Nil |
) Remuneration :
Mrs. Gunja Shah i —
Unsecured o )
1,84,590 (1,84,590) Nil | Nil |
Loan 1 3 ‘
, Unsecured. /. ;
Mr. Ashish Shah Loan I (2,98,709) (3,02,650) (20,935) | (3,941) |
Mr. Hirenkumar Shah Unsecured ' (2,69,527) (3,72,459) | (3,76,666) l (1,02,932) |

>
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Loan
Sales 5,874 6,170 5,874 6,170
Associate Enterprise & ‘
Sister Concern: ‘
) Unsecured .
Netztrack Solutions LR Nil (39,80,836) | (39,80,836) | (39,80,836) \
Unsecured
. 2,51,038 (76,67,392) | (79,18,430) | (79,18,430)
Trunkoz Technologies Pvt Loan
Ltd Purchases 11,47,714 | (11,47,714) | 28,09,758 Nil |
Rent 4,07,706 (4,20,782) 3,73,119 (13,076)
. Unsecured 7
PayNX Technologies Pvt e 7,587 (1,31,068) | (1,38,655)  (1,38,655) |
Ltd Sales 45,439 1,07,266 31,028 ; 61,827
Advances 19,80,010 25,84,614 6,04,604 | 6,04,604
OwnRegistrar Inc Sales Nil 2,71,600 27,18,800 2,71,600
Purchases Nil | (3,22,657) | 31,68,978  (3,22,657)
PayExecute Inc Advances Nil 16,873 16,873 " 16,8737‘;
Qualispace Inc Advances 49,92,850 1,36,23,854 43,46,327 } 86,31,004 \

28. Cash Flow Statement as required in terms of Accounting Standard “AS-3 (Revised) Cash Flow
Statements” is applicable and attached herewith with Financial Statements.

29. As the Company is not a manufacturing company, the information required under Clause3 (ii)

(a) and Clause 4C of Part Il of the Companies Act, 1956 has not been given.

30. The balances of sundry debtors, sundry creditors, loans and advances are subject to

reconciliation and confirmation and are as per books of account only. In the opinion of the

management, the reconciliation, if any, will not materially affect the loss of the Company for

the year.

31. In the opinion of the Management, all the current assets, loans and advances have a value on

realization in the ordinary course of business equal to the amount at which they are stated and

all provisions for liabilities are adequate and are not less than the amount considered

necessary.

32. Expenditure in foreign currency — < 31,30,236 (P.Y. ¥ 63,03,565)

33. Earning in Foreign Currency (On Cash Basis) — < NIL/-
(As per Receipt & Payment A/c from Tally)

(Amount in )

Particulars 2021
Receipt from Export against Invoice 1,01,283
Advance against Export Services -
Exchange Gain/(Loss) on remittance -
Total Earning in Foreign Currency
. 1,01,283
(On Cash Basis)
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Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the period ended 31t March 2021

34. Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and outstanding
net of advances — I Nil (P.Y. Nil)

35. On account of application of Schedule Il as per the new Companies Act, 2013 for the
preparation of financial statements, the disclosures, classification and presentation made in this
financial statement have been significantly impacted / changed. Previous year’s figures have
been regrouped / reclassified wherever necessary to correspond with the current year’s
classification / disclosure.

FOR QUALISPACE WEB SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED

7‘)&’/&?\?
DIMPLE SHAH
Director
DIN: 07788365

PLACE: MUMBAI
DATE: 04.12.2020
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